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To be successful by effectively & efficiently utilizing our philosophies so that we achieve & maintain 
constantly the High Standards of Product Quality & Customer Satisfaction.

MISSION

Nothing in this earth or in the heavens is hidden from ALLAH. To indulge in  honesty, integrity and 
self determination, to encourage in performance and most of all to put our trust in ALLAH, so that 
we may, eventually through our efforts and belief, become the leader amongst glass 
manufacturers of South Asian Countries.

VISION
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Marketing Office

GGL Plant-1 & Regional Marketing Office-North

GGL Plant-2

GGL Plant-3

12 D/5, Chandni Chowk

KDA Scheme No. 7-8

Karachi - 74000

UAN    : (021) 111 949 949

Fax : (021) 34926349

E-mail : marketing@ghaniglass.com

22 km Haripur Taxila Road, (From Haripur)

Thesil & District Haripur (KPK)

Phones :(0995) 639236-40 & (0995) 539063-65

Fax : (0995) 639067

H-15, Landhi Industrial Area

Karachi-74000

Phone :(021) 35020761-63

Fax :(021) 35020280

29-km Lahore Sheikhupura Road,

District Sheikhupura

Phones : (056) 3406810-11

Fax : (056)  3406795

Email : ghanifloat@ghaniglass.com

Head Office & Registered  Office

40-L Model Town Extension,

Lahore, Pakistan

UAN    : (042) 111 949 949

Fax    : ( 042) 35172263

E-mail : info@ghaniglass.com

http://www.ghaniglass.com
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Ghani has dominated the glass market for long by not only owning the biggest glass 
manufacturing operations but also by pocketing the largest market share in all its glass products 
line up in Pakistan. Ghani possesses most technologically advanced and latest plant and 
machineries, state of the art manufacturing equipment, highly trained professionals and ample 
space for future expansions.

LEADING THE WAY

Ghani has all internationally accredited quality certifications of glass production processes. Our 
team invests heavily in research and development to bring forward the latest innovation and 
inventions in practice while using the most supreme raw materials and highly skilled and 
experienced technical staff to maintain stringent quality measures. It is only through these top of 
the line methods that we are able to gain an edge in the glass market not only locally but also 
globally.
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STAKEHOLDERS

Together we create synergy

Ghani works tirelessly to ensure all stakeholders, may they be our customers, consumers, 
suppliers or employees, get the best value for their investments. Our stakeholders are all part of a 
big picture, meaning all of them work together to bring out the best in everyone’s interest.

Ghani soundly believes that all stakeholders are one unit and a team and believes in creating 
synergy by successfully integrating all of them and  ensuring a win-win situation. 
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CONSUMERS

Your satisfaction our excellence

Ghani believes in being there with its consumers through thick and thin, may it be a moment
of jubilation or a time of sadness. Our wide array of glass products are an integral part of one’s life
from the start of the day till night.

Our enterprise provides high-quality float glass products and value added glass, mirror, tempered 
glass etc, that are integral to adorning homes as well as offices; be it doors, windows or simple 
furniture, we have products for every space. The food and beverage glass containers we produce 
are filled with the most revitalizing drinks, refreshing liquids and energetic food products like jams, 
mayonnaise and honey, boosting everyday life. Our pharmaceutical glass containers are an 
essential part of our lives; providing the best form of packing for medicinal syrups, tablets and 
injections. These products have helped us build a healthier and safer environment in Pakistan. It is 
the trust of our satisfied consumers, which has helped us grow into Pakistan’s No.1 glass brand.
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CUSTOMERS

Strong relations; delighting a vast array of toppers

Our customer base consists of both local and international pharmaceutical and food/beverage 
brands including local suppliers and dealers of our float glass. Our avenues also extend towards 
exporting our glass products to foreign countries. We ensure to provide the best quality glass     
products meeting international quality standards at an affordable rate.
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To top it all off, we extend excellent customer services to our local and foreign customers and term 
our strong business relations with our customers as one of our biggest assets. Our customer's 
unwavering faith in us, their level of delightfulness and confidence in our products have made us 
the leader in our  business segments, not only locally but also emerging globally.



Exploring the finest; sourcing the best

Over the years, Ghani has attained an edge by reaching economies of scale by sourcing the best 
suppliers of relevant raw materials required abundantly at our manufacturing facilities. Ghani 
Glass is one of the biggest buyers of silica, feldspar, dolomite, and limestone among other 
materials and strongly supports local manufacturers, miners and suppliers, thus supporting the 
local economy of our motherland.

SUPPLIERS

We are also committed to the well-being of the  environment and actively support the conservation 
efforts through recycling and using broken glass (cullet), which is also being acquired locally; not 
only supporting economy but also the concern for green environment. Moreover, all other 
suppliers and vendors working with Ghani are one of the best in their relevant fields. 
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EMPLOYEES

Human capital; our real asset

Ghani values its employees to the greatest extent. Our employees are a vital part of our operations 
and we believe that our success depends on them so we are committed to working as a single unit.

The work environment in our offices and production facilities promotes our employee’s efficiency 
so that they can work to their highest potential while also being able to carve out time to fulfill their 
religious duties. We believe in profits for our employees which eventually leads to profit for the 
organization. Ghani provides free meals to its employees regardless of their status and also 
shares the bulk of its uplift and continuous upgradation of our human capital, which has enabled us 
to get a standing of one of the best employers in the country. We believe we all are the Ghani 
Family.
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Adding up values; mustering up growth

Ghani has been consistent in achieving the highest industry rating owing to the constant increase 
in profits for its shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS

Ghani is proud to have a continuous increase in its profits, which is visible in figures showing an 
upward trend in the past five years, thus augmenting our shareholders’ complete trust and 
confidence in our shares. Our statistical results show our position as the market leader which is 
proven by our strong successful track record. Team Ghani always strives hard to add up values for 
our shareholder by ensuring that the share becomes as strong as possible and ensure security for 
our shareholders by focusing on constant growth.
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Striving for the uplift and prosperity of the masses

Ghani staunchly supports and believes in Corporate Social Responsibility, for which Ghani spends 
over Rs. 400 Million per annum. We are already committed to numerous community support plans, 
including but not limited to the education sector where we support hardworking and deserving students 
of remote areas of the motherland. Our commitment goes even further to embrace education seekers 
in jails, where Ghani is taking adequate steps to provide basic education and religious teachings to the 
prisoners, alongside providing financial aid to them in order to cut out on the prison tenures. In the 
health sector, Ghani aids underprivileged patients through free dispensaries in remote areas; a joint 
venture with Indus Hospitals Punjab is also worth sharing, where free medical and surgical treatments 
are being offered to thousands of patients.

COMMUNITIES
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Ghani Social Welfare and Family Support Programs for float glass markets are also noteworthy; 
comprising of shadi packages for sisters and daughters of labourers, first aid spots, funds for trauma 
and emergency first aid during work, financial aid for Huffaz and free food in various stations for 
labourers of glass markets.
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Ghani follows stringent qualitative measures to ensure that it would always deliver the best quality 
and nothing else. Ghani Glass Limited is renowned and recognized for excellent production 
quality as well as finest workmanship, which is expertly translated into aesthetic qualities, 
continued trust and successful visions. Globally accepted production regulations and       
visionary industrial finesse contribute in the final product that we offer to our satisfied customers, 
who share a history of satisfaction and delight with us.

STRICT ADHERENCE TO INTERNATIONAL
QUALITY STANDARDS

The internationally accepted quality certifications being followed at Ghani’s  production facilities 
include the following:

1. ISO 9001 (Quality Management System)
2. ISO 14001 (Environmental Management System)
3. FSSC 22000 (Food Safety System Certification)
for food & beverage glass containers in particular. 
4. ISO 15378 (Good Manufacturing Practices-GMP standard)
for pharmaceuticals glass containers manufacturing.
5. Supplier Guiding Principle (SGP)
for food & beverage glass containers.
6. ISO 14644-1 / Class 100,000 / Class 8 (Clean Room Certification) 

While introducing for the first time in the region, Ghani has taken the lead to set up Class100,000 
Clean Room Facility along with an automatic shrink wrap  packaging, ensuring no man handling 
and getting the pharmaceutical glass containers to be packed in ready to be filled in packaging.



Ghani encourages and fully supports Green Environment programs, which includes all                    
environment friendly activities and endeavors. Ghani strives its level best to implement all                  
environment related Internationally accepted global standards.

GHANI’S ENDEAVOUR FOR GREEN PAKISTAN &
CONCERN FOR ENVIRONMENT

Nonetheless, Ghani hugely supports the concern for Green 
Environment and supports recycling of its products in every 
possible way. All glass products of Ghani are 100% recyclable, 
thus ensuring no harm to the nature. Not only the environment in 
particular but also the health standards, including food safety 
standards, etc. are being followed and maintained at our 
production facilities to ensure the provision of 100% healthy glass 
packaging to community.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ghani Glass Limited, I welcome you to the 29 Annual General Meeting of your 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

The Board members effectively bring appropriate industry knowledge and the diversity to the Board and constitute a 
mix of independent and non-executive directors. The non-executive and independent directors were equally 
involved in all key matters and decisions of the Board.

The Board is able to make timely strategic decisions ensuring that operations are in line with the strategies; 

The Board has carried out its roles and responsibilities diligently and contributed to the Company's strategic 
leadership.

The Board remained updated with respect to achievement of Company's objectives, goals, strategies and financial 
performance through regular presentations by the management, internal and external auditors and other 
independent consultants. The Board provided appropriate direction and oversight on a timely basis;

The Board has reviewed the Company's financial statements periodically along with all governance matters such as 
the transparency of disclosures, policies, corporate plans, budgets and regulatory requirements.

The Board ensures that the accounts fairly represent the financial position of the Company. It also ensures 
effectiveness of internal controls. The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements and HR Committee 
overviewed and recommended selection and compensation of senior management team.

The Board ensured that all the legal and regulatory requirements have been complied with by the management of the 
Company. The Board also evaluated its own performance.

The Board has approved final cash dividend @ Re.1 per share i.e. 10% (in addition to first interim cash dividend @ 
Rs.6.5 per share i.e.65% and second interim cash dividend @ Rs.2 per share i.e. 20% already paid) during the year 
ended June 30, 2021. 
                     

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Lahore
Date: October 1, 2021

                                              Zaid Ghani
                                                            Chairman
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We belong to ALLAH Almighty and HE guides us to attain endless bliss in Worldly life and life hereafter. The world 
faced an unprecedented catastrophe in the form of the COVID-19 pandemic. More than a year into the pandemic, the 
world continues to face its subsequent waves, affecting lives as newer mutants of the virus emerge. This is all with 
the order of ALLAH, our creator and our master.

The firm belief in ALLAH almighty has shaped our ambitions and every day actions. Pakistani markets emerges as a 
global center of connectivity, enterprise and prosperity, we are partnering with new generations to boost the nation's 
transformation. We are unleashing utmost for a better future for all.

The couple of last two years would perhaps be forever etched in our memory as for the havoc it wreaked on lives and 
livelihood. However, as with all types of crises, the year 2020-21 saw some exceptional performances and will be 
remembered for the strengths and resilience it brought out in us.

Your company stood strong in the adversity and navigated successfully through the challenges posed by the crisis. 
The aggressive business strategy of the management of Ghani Glass enabled us to overcome the tough challenges. 
Despite the ongoing unprecedented economic conditions, proactive approach of our sales and marketing team 
enabled the robust business growth during the year under review.

It is with immense pleasure and pride that I share with you the stupendous financial performance of your Company 
during the year. For the financial year under review, the Net Revenue of your Company increased to Rupees 21 
billion as compared to Rupees 17 billion. Margins stimulated at higher side comparing with the previous year. Your 
Company created history, recording the highest ever Profit After Tax of Rupees 3.2 billion as against Rupees 1.5 
billion, in the previous year. Resultantly, Earning per share has also increased to Rupees 4.16 as compared to 
Rupees 2.02 for the last year.

The Company is fully cognizant of its wider responsibility towards the community. Different measures have been 
taken for prosperity, health and literacy of the local communities from time to time. Multiple Jobs are created at the 
company's production facilities and hiring is made from the local communities it operates in for their benefits. Ghani 
has a strong commitment for its vital role in supporting and working with its stakeholders for sustainable community 
and social development program and has clear vision to meet its Social & Environmental responsibilities. Improving 
Health, Education, Poverty Alleviation, Environment Protection Various activities across these segments have been 
initiated nearby its plant locations and the neighboring villages. Ghani has undertaken projects including “Jamiatul 
Ghani” which is contributing for the Commercial, Religious and Technical education to the needy and poor of the 
society. “Almaida Lil Ghani” is providing daily free meal to more than 10,000 needy persons nationwide. Ghani's 
“Orphan Support Program” helps the needy orphans of the community.

During the year under review, your company has contributed Rupees 20 billion on account of various Government 
levies, taxes, custom duty, sales tax and reduction in import bill. 

The Board has approved final cash dividend @ Re.1 per share i.e. 10% (in addition to first interim cash dividend @ 
Rs.6.5 per share i.e.65% and second interim cash dividend @ Rs.2 per share i.e. 20% already paid) during the year 
ended June 30, 2021. 

We owe our strong performance and continued growth to all our leaders, employees, business partners, vendors, 
bankers and other stakeholders. I would like to express my gratitude to everyone who, in one way or another, makes 
it possible for us to continue to grow, generate value and achieve unmatched growth of our business.

CEO’S REVIEW

Imtiaz Ahmed Khan
                                                                                  Chief Executive Officer

Lahore
Date: October 1, 2021
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Your Directors take pleasure in presenting Annual Report on performance and progress of the Company together with 
the  Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The Company's principal activity is manufacturing and sale of float glass and container glass. 

During the year ended June 30, 2021 your Company achieved:

· Net Revenue of Rupees 21 Billion which is 26% higher as compared to last year's Net Revenue of Rupees 17 
Billion;

· Gross Profit increased to Rupees 4.9 Billion as compared to Rupees 2.6 Billion;
· Net profit increased to Rupees 3.2 Billion (2020: 1.5 Billion);
· Earning per share increased to Rupees 4.16 (2020: 2.02 restated).

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(Rupees in Million)

Net Revenue

Gross Profit

Operating Profit

Profit before Tax

Profit after Tax

Earning per Share basic % diluted (Rupees)

17,096

2,606

1,450

1,603

1,513

2.02

Financial Indicators

 

20202021
                             

 
 

 

21,471

4,852

3,165

3,170

3,216

4.16

During FY21 COVID-19 remained a prevalent and all-pervasive concepts of work forced to amend for the time being 
across the globe. Pakistan remained successful in catering COVID-19 by lowering infection rates against most of the 
countries of world, which enabled us to continue operations for most part of the year. Our management team and 
employees rose to the occasion and stayed committed to all stakeholders. Their efforts enabled our Company to 
achieve historical financial results. Pakistan's GDP growth was clocking in at 3.94% against the comparatively lower in 
the prior year due to pandemic. As a result of Government's prudent measures, Large-Scale Manufacturing (LSM) had 
recovered at a remarkable rate with major sectors showing substantial improvement over last year. Fiscal and external 
accounts numbers also improved amid macroeconomic stabilization measures taken by the government.

Company adopted very effective policy for safety of its employees and society during the Pandemic (COVID 19) as the 
first concern of the Company was the health and safety of its employees. The Company is following all 
recommendations of the Government and SOPs to overcome the spread of COVID 19.
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PROJECTS COMPLETED

The management is fully vigilant to pursue its long term strategy for expansion and sustainability. During the year ended 
June 30, 2021, the company raised equity through issuance of right shares for the purpose of installation of new Float Line 
and BMR of Existing Lines. The Commercial production from new float line has been started subsequent to the year end.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Glass Industry has been playing its vital role in creating job opportunities, saving foreign exchange by producing import 
substitute, developing the country by fetching foreign exchange by exporting globally by using indigenous raw material. 

In continuation of adherence to our expansion and diversification policy, the company is going to launch new segment of 
tableware glass in the coming financial year. The new project of tableware glass would be financed through internal 
resources of the company.

The future of Glass Sector is remarkable if the Government supports Industry by giving export incentives and relief in gas 
prices. Being optimistic, certain challenges have been foreseen ahead in the form of ongoing waves of COVID 19, surging 
energy costs including RLNG, Rupee depreciation, higher inflation and overall economic slowdown. The management is 
aware and fully prepared to mitigate these risks through future-driven strategy and maintain growth through generating 
revenue, operational excellence, effective marketing and exploring new markets globally.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT & EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP

The management considers competitive manpower with cutting edge expertise essential for its corporate goals also 
believes that job satisfaction, motivation and high morale are keys to success. It takes pride in engaging the best available 
professionals and also employs new techniques of human resource management for continuous improvements. The 
Company's policy to retain its people is the best and unmatchable. To continue our legacy of being unparalleled leaders, we 
put efforts to inspire top talent at all levels & aspire to be a destination of choice.

We have set clear goals and KPIs (key performance indicators) for our teams which in turn generate a clear focus towards 
building a result- driven organization. Our talent management systems encourage honest and frequent feedback to provide 
our employees with a holistic assessment of their behaviors and its impact, thus ensuring that as teams, we harness the best 
out of our employees and proactively manage performance.

The Company has permanent welfare and motivational strategy for its employees. The Company provides hygienic meals 
to its entire workforce at all sites including persons hired through contractors; Seven persons in each year are selected 
through random balloting and sent to perform Holy Hajj at the expense of the Company; Medical facilities for workers and 
first aid (for plant workers) are also provided to the employees; There are masajids at each plant and head office for praying 
and to learn teachings of Religion; The Company encourages and promotes all employees to participate in sports and 
various extracurricular activities. In this regard, the Company arranges cricket tournaments for its employees.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a part of its initiatives under the Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR) drive, the Company has extended donations of 
Rupees 423 Million to Ghani Foundation Trust (related party of Ghani Glass Limited). Ghani Foundation Trust has 
undertaken following projects in the area of employee welfare, promoting education, providing free meal to the needy, 
eradicating hunger, health care, environment sustainability etc.

EDUCATION

Message Grammar School, Izmir Town, Lahore

Over 1,250 students are getting highest quality education in this higher secondary school.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

(RUPEES IN MILLION)

12,764

1,989

5,472

Exports Reduction in import billDirect & Indirect Taxes
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Chandbagh School and College, Muridke

Full boarding school with over 1000 students.

Al Ghani Trust School, Pasroor

Over 175 students have been 'providing Financial Support to get free education till Matric level.

Jamia tul Ghani

An Educational Institution where a blend of Commercial, Religious and Technical education has been arranged for the 
community.

FREE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Free Financial Assistance and Education for convicts in Jails 

Prisoners who have completed their punishment but are not free because of being unable to pay off the financial penalty 
imposed by the court of law have been provided with Financial Support;

Regular classes are arranged for prisoners (Adults and children) for hygiene awareness, basic religion teachings and Prayers 
and Quran teachings;

Training is providing to prisoners on how to become a useful member of the community once out of jail and Character building 
courses.

HEALTH CARE

Iftikhar Ghani Trust Dispensary

Over 3000 non affording patients are being treated and provided with free medicine on monthly basis.

FREE FOOD

Almaida Lil Ghani

A new CSR project naming “Almaida Lil Ghani” has been started to provide free meal to the poor and needy people; almost 
more than 10,000 needy persons have been serving free meal daily on four different locations nationwide.

DIVIDEND PAY OUT

The Board of Directors has approved final cash dividend @ Re.1 per share i.e. 10% (in addition to first interim cash dividend @ 
Rs.6.5 per share i.e.65% and second interim cash dividend @ Rs.2 per share i.e. 20% already paid) during the year ended June 
30, 2021. 

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

The Company's EPS has been recorded as Rs.4.16 per share as compared to Rs.2.02 (restated) per share for the last year. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The present auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants retired and offered themselves for re-appointment. As 
suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the company 
for the year ending June 30, 2022, subject to approval of the members in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company operates a funded contributory provident fund scheme for its employees and contributions, based on salaries of 
the employees, are made to the fund on monthly basis.

SHARE PRICE TREND

During the year under review minimum price of share of Rs.10 each fell down to Rs.40 and rose as high as Rs.85.99 and closed 
at Rs.48.20 as on June 30, 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors, which consists of Eighteen members, has responsibility to independently and transparently monitor the 
performance of the company and take strategic decisions to achieve sustainable growth in the company.

The total number of directors is 18 as per the following:

a. Male: 17   b. Female: 1
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Written notices of the Board meetings along with working papers were sent to the members seven days before meetings. A total of 
five meetings of the Board of Directors, five meetings of the Audit Committee and two meetings of HR & R Committee were held 
during the period of one year, from July 01, 2020 to June 30, 2021. The attendance of the Board members was as follow:

The composition of board is as follows:

Mr. Ayub Sadiq

Mr. Nouman Shaukat

Mr. Waqar Zafar

Mr. Khalid Aslam Butt

Hafiz Muhammad Saad

Mr. Ajmal Khan

Independent Directorsi)

Mr. Zaid Ghani

Mrs. Reema Anwaar

Mr. Moeez Ghani

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Mr. Shamim Ahmed

Mr. Ovais Shamim

Non-Executive Directorsii)

Executive Directors

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mr. Junaid Ghani

Mr. Jubair Ghani

Mr. Hamza Ghani

iii)

Female Directorsiv) Mrs. Reema Anwaar

Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend some of the meetings.

*  Retired on December 14, 2020
**Elected in Elections held on December 14, 2020
***Audit Committee was re-constituted on December 22, 2020

No. of HR & R
Committee Meetings

attended

No. of Board of 
Directors’ Meetings

attended

 No. of Audit 
Committee Meetings

attended

   
    Name of the Director

Mr. Zaid Ghani

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mrs. Rubina Imtiaz

Mrs. Reema Anwaar

Mrs. Ayesha Aftab

Mr. Junaid Ghani

Mr. Jubair Ghani 

Mr. Hamza Ghani

Mr. Moeez Ghani

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Mr. Ayub Sadiq

Mr. Shamim Ahmed

Mr. Junaid Shamim

Mr. Ovais Shamim

Mr. Muhammad Ayub

Mr. Nauman Shaukat

Mr. Khalid Aslam Butt

Hafiz Muhammad Saad

Mr. Waqar Zafar

Mr. Ajmal Khan (nominee EOBI)

5

5

5

5

2*

5

2*

5

5

5

5

5

5

3

1*

3

2**

3**

3**

3**

1**

2

5

-

-

-

-

-

3***

-

-

-

-

2***

5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2

-

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by Pakistan Stock Exchange in its Listing Regulations, 
relevant for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been adopted by the company and have been duly complied with.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Statement of Compliance with the best practices of Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The board has adopted the Code of Conduct. All employees are informed of this Code and are required to observe these 
rules of conduct in relation to customers, suppliers and regulators.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (after June 30, 2021)

There have been no material changes since June 30, 2021. The company has not entered into any commitment, which 
would materially affect its financial position at the date. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee of the Board has been in existence since the enforcement of the Code of Corporate Governance, which 
comprises of all three non-executive directors (including one Independent Director as its chairman). During the year, 
quarterly meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The Audit Committee has its terms of reference which were 
determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with the guidelines provided in the Listing Regulations.

RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We are committed to establish mutually beneficial relations with our suppliers, customers and business partners.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors is aware of its responsibility with respect to internal control environment and accordingly has 
established an efficient internal financial control for ensuring effective and efficient conduct of operations, safeguarding of 
Company assets, Compliance with applicable law and regulations. The Independent Internal Audit of the Company regularly   
monitors the implementation of financial controls, whereas the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal 
control frame work.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

In compliance with the Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, 
we give below statements on Corporate and Financial Reporting framework:

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly, the Company's state of affairs, the 
results of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

Proper books of account have been maintained by the company.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial 
statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the listing 
regulations.

There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.
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Imtiaz Ahmed Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Aftab Ahmad Khan

Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lahore Date: October 1, 2021

The key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the accounts.

The value of investments and bank balances in respect of staff retirement benefits:

Provident Fund       Rs.727.49 million

The value of investment includes accrued profit.

The principal risks faced by the Company include economic slowdown due to coronavirus (COVID 19), tough competition, 
Rupee devaluation, PET plastic pharma containers, increasing gas prices and energy costs etc.

The Company's production has no negative impact on the environment as our plant and operations are complying with 
international and national environmental standards.

There are no changes that have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the company or 
any other company in which the company has interest.

The  Board  ensures  adequacy  of  internal  control activities  either  directly  or  through  its  Committees. The Board also 
reviews the Company's financial operations and position at regular intervals by means of interim accounts, reports, 
profitability reviews and other financial and statistical information. The Board reviews material budgetary variances and 
actions taken thereon on periodic basis.
 
TRADING OF SHARES BY THE CEO, DIRECTORS, CFO, COMPANY SECRETARY AND THEIR SPOUSES AND 
MINOR CHILDREN

No trading in shares of the Company was made by the CEO, Directors, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and 
minor during the year ended June 30, 2021 except as disclosed in Pattern of Shareholding.
 
PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDINGS UNDER SECTION 227(2)(f) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

A statement of the pattern of shareholding of certain class of shareholders as at June 30, 2021, whose disclosure is required 
under the reporting framework, is included in the annexed shareholder's information. The directors, CEO, CFO, Company 
Secretary and their spouses or minor children did not carry out any trade in shares of the company during the year, except as 
noted above.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE /INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

· No Director shall determine his / her own remuneration.
· The company has a policy of not paying remuneration package for Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all the shareholders, dealers and other stakeholders for their valued support and 
I up hold the confidence they have showed in the management and I pray to Allah SWT for His guidance and beg for His 
endless mercy for all our endeavors, so that we shall be able to come up with dear rewards for all the stakeholders.

We put on record our doubtless faith in Allah SWT and pray to him for the very best of this company and for all the individuals 
directly or indirectly attached to it.



Operating Results

Sale 

Gross profit

Profit before tax

Financial data

Fixed assets

Capital work-in-progress

Long term investment/

Advances, and deposits

Current assets

Current liabilities

Assets employed

Financed by:

Ordinary capital 

Reserves

Shareholders equity

Finances and deposits

Funds invested 

Earning per share (Rupees)

Dividend %

-cash

-Bonus shares

Total

Deferred taxation

Break-up-value (Rupees)

Subscription money against right issue

Intangible assets

SIX YEARS AT GLANCE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

                (Rupees in Million)

2016

11,785

3,623

2,410

7,335

314

863

5,463

2,574

11,400

2,192

8,062

10,254

-

11,400

3.64

95

95

-

1,146

            46.77

-

2018

14,182 

4,003 

3,051
 

7,632 

2,294

26

1,000

6,990

3,926

14,016

4,166

-

8,738

12,904

-

1,112

14,016

5.60

 

30.98

40

-

40

2017

13,212 

4,328 

2,934
 

7,099 

465

24

877

7,122

3,451

12,136

2,192

1,281

7,407

10,881

-

1,256

12,136

4.25

 

49.63

110

-

110

2019

17,248

4,378

3,231

10,999

1,222

26

1,341

9,228

5,881

16,935

5,415

-

10,161

15,576

-

1,358

16,935

5.98

28.76

45

-

45

2020

17,096

2,606

1,603

11,884

770

21

1,428

11,106

5,993

19,216

5,415

-

10,635

16,050

1,737

1,430

19,216

2.02

29.64

20

-

20

- -

2021

21,471 

4,852 

3,170
 

14,125
 

1,112

16

1,424

9,885

7,365

19,196

8,394

-

8,706

17,100

830

1,267

19,196

4.16

 

20.37

95

-

95
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SIX YEARS AT GLANCE

Profit before tax ratio (%)

Inventory turnover ratio

Total assets turnover ratio

Fixed assets turnover ratio

Price earning ratio

Return on capital employed (%)

Market value per share (Rupees) at the year end

Debt Equity ratio

Current ratio

Interest cover ratio

Earning per share (Rupees)

Gross profit ratio (%)

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2019

25%

19%

4.66

0.76

1.41

19.15%

43.95

0:100

1:0.64

259.04

7.35

5.98

2018

28%

22%

10.97

0.79

1.43

21.84%

61.68

0:100

1:0.56

313.48

11.01

5.60

2017

33%

22%

7.86

0.85

1.75

24.25%

83.42

0:100

1:0.48

308.87

19.63

4.25

20%

6.27

0.84

1.54

21.47%

94.38

0:100

1:0.47

65.37

2016

31%

25.93

3.64

2021 2020

15%

9%

2.83

0.68

1.35

20.37

8.52%

41.15

0:100

1:0.54

48.20

2.02

23%

15%

7.99

0.81

1.41

11.59

17.25%

48.20

0:100

1:0.75

23.45

4.16
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS DISTRIBUTION

(Rupees in Million)Value Addition

Sales inclusive of sales tax

Material and services

Other income

Value Distribution

Employees

Salaries, wages and amenities

Government

Providers of Capital

Dividend

Finance Cost

Society

Donation

Retained in business

Depreciation

Retained profit

Workers profit participation fund

2021 2020

20,050

(12,041)

167

8,176

1,986

86

2,072

3,077

289

34

323

234

234

1,247

1,224

2,471

8,176

25%

38%

4%

3%

30%

100%

30%

4%

3%

38%

25%

                    

Employees Government Providers of Capital

Society Retained in business

2020

25,165

(13,728)

291

 

11,728

 

2,834 

172 

3,006 

3,711
 

6,211

 
141

6,352

423

 

423

 1,231

(2,995)

-1,764

11,728

26%

32%

54%

4%

-15%

100%
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-15%

54%

4%

32%

26%

                    

Employees Government Providers of Capital

Society Retained in business
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet

Total Equity and minority interest 

Total non-current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Total non-current assets 

Total current assets

Total Assets

Profit and Loss Account

Net Sales

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

General and Administration Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Other operating Expenses

Other operating income

Operating Profit

Finance Cost

Share of profit/loss of associate

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

(Rupees in Million)

       % increase/(decrease) over preceeding year

Impairment loss on trade debtors 

13.42

10.84

0.72

11

3.83

23.19

11

4.66

1.72

12

36.36

12.54

141.11

39.42

29

4

-88.60

0.49

(134)

19

0.11

24

2016

-

2019

15,576

1,358

5,881

22,815

13,587

9,228

22,815

17,248

-12,870

4,378

-791

-438

-223

-4

216

-1,240

3,139

-13

105

92

3,231

-87

3,144

2018

12,904

1,112

3,926

17,942

10,951

6,990

17,942

14,182

-10,179

4,003

-652

-397

-228

-12

298

-990

3,012

-10

48

38

3,051

-184

2,866

2017

10,881

1,256

3,451

15,587

8,465

7,122

15,587

13,212

-8,884

4,328

-579

-773

-209

-

83

-1,478

2,850

-10

93

83

2,934

-631

2,302

2016

10,254

1,146

2,585

13,985

8,511

5,474

13,985

11,785

-8,162

3,623

-446

-710

-185

-

54

-1,287

2,336

-37

112

74

2,410

-436

1,973

2018

18.60

-11.46

13.76

15

29.37

-1.85

15

-

7.34

14.58

(8)

12.65

-48.70

9.21

258.97

(33)

6

2.45

-47.96

(54)

4

-70.78

25

6.11

9.59

33.50

11

-0.54

30.11

11

2017

12.11

8.85

19

29.83

8.87

12.76

-

54.05

15

22

-74.55

-17.07

12

22

44.63

17

2021 2020

16,050

3,166

5,993

25,209

14,103

11,106

25,209

17,096

-14,491

2,606

-675

-342

-154

-114

129

-1,156

1,450

-34

188

154

1,603

-90

1,513

2021 2020

3.04

82.02

13.71

10

3.80

20.35

10

-0.88

12.59

(40)

-14.63

-22.07

-30.72

0.00

-40.44

(7)

(54)

79.11

171.32

67

(50)

3.37

(52)

2019

20.71

22.19

49.78

27

24.07

32.01

27

21.62

26.44

9

21.34

10.47

-2.28

-66.45

-27.51

25

4

28.25

140

6

-52.64

10

117.39

17,100

2,097

7,365

26,562

16,677

9,885

26,562

21,471

-16,619

4,852

-1,142

-454

-286

7

188

-1,687

3,165

-141

147

5

3,170

45

3,216

6.54

-33.78

22.90

5

18.25

-11.00

5

25.59

14.69

86

69.22

32.98

84.82

-106.30

46.16

46

118

315.77

-21.91

-96.53

98

-150.24

113
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Balance Sheet

Total Equity and minority interest 

Total non-current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Total non-current assets 

Total current assets

Total Assets

Profit and Loss Account

Net Sales

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

General and Administration Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Other operating Expenses

Other operating income

Impairment loss on trade debtors

Operating Profit

Finance Cost

Share of Profit/Loss of associate

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Rs.) %

2019

(Rs.)(Rs.) %%

2016

(Rs.) %

20172018

15,576

1,358

5,881

22,815

13,587

9,228

22,815

17,248

-12,870

4,378

-791

-438

-223

-4

216

-1,240

3,139

-13

105

92

3,231

-87

3,144

68.27

5.95

25.77

100.00

59.55

40.45

100.00

100.00

(74.62)

25.38

(4.58)

(2.54)

(1.29)

(0.02)

1.25

(7.19)

18.20

(0.07)

0.61

0.53

18.73

(0.51)

18.23

12,904

1,112

3,926

17,942

10,951

6,990

17,942

14,182

-10,179

4,003

-652

-397

-228

-12

298

-990

3,012

-10

48

38

3,051

-184

2,866

71.92

6.20

21.88

100.00

61.04

38.96

100.00

100.00

(71.78)

28.22

(4.60)

(2.80)

(1.61)

(0.08)

2.10

(6.98)

21.24

(0.07)

0.34

0.27

21.51

(1.30)

20.21

10,881

1,256

3,451

15,587

8,465

7,122

15,587

13,212

-8,884

4,328

-579

-773

-209

-

83

-1,478

2,850

-10

93

83

2,934

-631

2,302

69.80

8.06

22.14

100.00

54.31

45.69

100.00

100.00

(67.24)

32.76

(4.38)

(5.85)

(1.58)

-

0.63

(11.18)

21.57

(0.07)

0.70

0.63

22.20

(4.78)

17.43

10,254

1,146

2,585

13,985

8,511

5,474

13,985

11,785

-8,162

3,623

-446

-710

-185

-

54

-1,287

2,336

-37

112

74

2,410

-436

1,973

73.32

8.19

18.48

100.00

60.86

39.14

100.00

100.00

(69.26)

30.74

(3.78)

(6.03)

(1.57)

-

0.46

(10.92)

19.82

(0.32)

0.95

0.63

20.45

(3.70)

16.75

(Rs.)(Rs.) %%

20202021

16,050

3,166

5,993

25,209

14,103

11,106

25,209

17,096

-14,491

2,606

-675

-342

-154

-114

129

-1,156

1,450

-34

188

154

1,603

-90

1,513

63.67

9.81

26.52

100.00

55.94

44.06

100.00

100.00

(84.76)

15.24

(3.95)

(2.00)

(0.90)

(0.67)

0.75

(6.76)

8.48

(0.20)

1.10

0.90

9.38

(0.53)

8.85

17,100

2,097

7,365

26,562

16,677

9,885

26,562

21,471

-16,619

4,852

-1,142

-454

-286

7

188

-1,687

3,165

-141

147

3,170

05

45

3,216

64.38

7.89

27.73

100.00

62.79

37.21

100.00

100.00

(77.40)

22.60

(5.32)

(2.12)

(1.33)

0.03

0.88

(7.86)

14.74

(0.66)

0.68

14.77

0.03

0.21

14.98
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with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the “Regulations’’)

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
 
1. The total number of directors are 18 as per the following:

 a. Male: 17 b. Female: 1
 
2. The composition of Board is as follows:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this company.

  
4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 

disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.
 
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 

company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date of 
approval or updating is maintained by the company.

 
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the 

Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.
 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by the 

Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

 
8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the 

Act and these Regulations.
 
9. During the period under report, no director has acquired training certification. However, at present there are six 

certified directors namely:

· Mr. Junaid Ghani 
· Mr. Jubair Ghani
· Mr. Zaid Ghani

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Name of Company:  Ghani Glass Limited

Year Ended:  June 30, 2021

Non - Executive Directors

Independent Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Zaid Ghani

Mrs. Reema Anwaar

Mr. Moeez Ghani

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Mr. Shamim Ahmed

Mr. Ovais Shamim

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mr. Junaid Ghani

Mr. Jubair Ghani

Mr. Hamza Ghani

a

c

b

d Mrs. Reema AnwaarFemale Director

Mr. Ayub Sadiq

Mr. Nouman Shaukat

Mr. Waqar Zafar

Mr. Khalid Aslam Butt

Hafiz Muhammad Saad

Mr. Ajmal Khan

33GHANI GLASS LIMITED



· Mr. Hamza Ghani
· Mr. Ibrahim Ghani
· Mr. Junaid Shamim

Further, approval has been obtained from SECP for exemption from training for the following Board members:

· Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan
· Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan
· Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan
· Mrs. Reema Anwaar
· Mr. Shamim Ahmad

10. There are no new appointments of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during 
the year.

 
11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 

Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

 a) Audit Committee 

  

 b) HR and Remuneration Committee 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committee for compliance.

 
14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced 
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

  
16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 

Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit 
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, 
dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal 
audit, company secretary or director of the company.

  
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 

except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

 
18. We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 

complied with.

Mr. Ayub Sadiq Chairman

Mr. Zaid Ghani

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Member

Member

Independent director

Non-executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ayub Sadiq Chairman

Mr. Zaid Ghani

Member

Member

Independent director

Non-executive Director

Executive DirectorMr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Meetings Frequency

Audit Committee

HR and Remuneration Committee Two meetings were held during the year

Quarterly meetings were held during the year
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Ghani Glass Limited (the Company) for the 
year ended 30 June, 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with 
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of 
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only 
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions 
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess 
and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party 
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June, 2021

To the Members of Ghani Glass Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDTIOR’S REVIEW REPORT
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EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Lahore
Date: October 5, 2021

 

 



Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ghani Glass Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 30 June 2021 , the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of , the statement of profit or loss

 changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 'financial statements') and we 
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for , 
the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, 
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and 
fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

 Pakistan (the Code)and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

 Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

To the Members of Ghani Glass Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Following are the Key audit matter(s) 

 S. No.
 

Key audit matter(s)
 

How the matter was addressed in our audit
 1.  Revenue Recognition

Our audit procedures included the following: 

§

§

§

§

As described in note 3.14 and note 25, the 
Company's revenue constitutes both local and export 
sales. During the year ended 30 June 2021, the 
Company generated net revenue of Rs. 21.47 billion 
as compared to Rs. 17.09 billion during the previous 
year, which represents an increase of approximately 
26%.

Considering the significance of amounts involved and 
that the revenue is a key indicator of performance of 
the Company and its management, we have 
considered revenue recognition as a Key Audit 
Matter.

Our audit procedures amongst others included the 
following:
We obtained an understanding of the Company's 
processes and related internal controls for revenue 
recognition and on a sample basis, tested the 
effectiveness of those controls, specifically in relation to 
recognition of revenue and timing thereof.
We evaluated the appropriateness of the Company's 
revenue recognition policies, in accordance with the 
requirements of IFRS 15.
On a sample basis, reviewed the sales transactions 
near the reporting date to assess whether the 
transactions are recorded in relevant accounting 
period.
We performed substantive analytical procedures 
including trend analysis of information taking into 
account historical sales and monthly patterns to identify 
unusual movements and investigated the reasons 
thereof. 
We correlated the revenue transactions with the 
movement in receivables and bank balances and 
compared with the results from our balance 
confirmation procedures.
We reconciled revenue recorded in the books of 
accounts on a sample basis with underlying accounting 
records including dispatch and delivery documents.
We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of related 
disclosures made in the financial statements in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
standards and the Companies Act, 2017.

§

§
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3. Initial audit

This is our first year of audit of the Company. Initial 
audit engagements involve a number of 
considerations not associated with recurring audits. 
Additional planning activities and considerations 
necessary to establish an appropriate audit strategy 
and audit plan include: 

Gaining an initial understanding of the Company 
and its business including its control 
environment and information systems, sufficient 
to make audit risk assessments and develop the 
audit strategy and plan; 

Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the opening balances including the 
selection and application of accounting 
principles; and 

Communicating with the previous auditors.

Due to the additional considerations involved with 
initial audit, significant attention of audit executives 
was required and hence, considered a Key Audit 
Matter.

§

§

§

§

The Company continues to invest in significant 
capital projects with capital expenditure of Rs. 3.51 
billion during the year ended 30 June 2021, as 
detailed in note 16, of which Rs. 2.98 billion relates to 
the Company's new production line commissioned for 
the production of float glass.

The significant level of capital expenditure requires 
consideration of the nature of costs incurred to 
ensure that capitalization of property, plant and 
equipment meets the specific recognition criteria in 
accordance with the requirements of IAS 16, 
'Property, Plant and Equipment' (IAS 16), specifically 
in relation to assets constructed by the Company.

Considering the significance of amounts involved and 
the risk that amounts being capitalized may not meet 
the capitalization criteria, we have considered 
additions to property, plant and equipment 
specifically relating to installation of new plant as a 
Key Audit Matter. 

We obtained an understanding of the Company's 
processes and related internal controls for additions to 
capital work in progress and on a sample basis, tested 
the effectiveness of those controls, specifically in 
relation to the authorization of capital expenditure and 
accuracy of its recording in the system.

We assessed the nature of property, plant and 
equipment capitalized by the Company to test the 
validity of amounts capitalized and evaluating whether 
assets capitalized meet the recognition criteria set out in 
IAS 16.

We considered whether capitalization of assets ceased 
when the asset was in the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by the Company.

On a sample basis, reviewed the costs incurred on 
project with supporting documentation and contracts.

We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of related 
disclosures made in the financial statements in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standard and the Companies Act, 2017.

§

§

§

§

Following additional audit procedures were applicable 
being the auditors of the Company for the first year:

We conducted meeting with the previous auditors and 
gained an understanding of the key audit risks and 
areas of focus identified by them.

We performed review of the working papers of 
predecessor auditors in order to gain reliance on 
opening balances.

We obtained an understanding of the business and 
financial statements' risks relevant to our audit.

We evaluated the client's internal control environment 
including entity level controls in order to establish our 
audit strategy.

§

§

§

§

§
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S. No. Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit

2. Capitalization of property, plant and equipment

§

Our audit procedures included the following:

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual 
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017  and for such (XIX of 2017)
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 



In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 ; (XIX of 2017)
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 

of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Companies Act, 2017  and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; (XIX of 2017)

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company's business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other matter
The financial statements of Ghani Glass Limited for the year ended 30 June 2020, were audited by another firm of chartered 
accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 07 October 2020.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Farooq Hameed.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Lahore Chief Financial Officer

___________

Chief Executive Officer

___________

Note 2021 2020

( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 26 21,470,563,224 17,096,244,083

Cost of sales 27 (16,618,986,147) (14,490,568,552)

Gross profit 4,851,577,077

         

2,605,675,531

General and administrative expenses 28 (1,142,292,383)

        

(675,048,506)

Selling and distribution expenses 29 (454,166,155)

           

(341,518,277)

Other expenses 30 (285,506,235)

           

(154,478,486)

Reversal / (Provision) for expected credit loss against trade debts 21.3 7,168,575

                

(113,746,383)

Other income 31 188,170,653
            

128,744,820

(1,686,625,545)        (1,156,046,832)

Profit from operations 3,164,951,532
         

1,449,628,699

Finance costs 32 (141,244,079)

           

(33,971,799)

Share of profit of associate 17 146,579,432

            

187,706,517

Profit before taxation 3,170,286,885

         

1,603,363,417

Taxation 33 45,363,949

              

(90,287,958)

Profit after taxation for the year 3,215,650,834 1,513,075,459

Restated

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 44 4.16 2.02

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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___________



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Lahore

Note 2021 2020

( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Profit after taxation for the year 3,215,650,834

         

1,513,075,459

Other comprehensive income:

Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:

Investment in associate

- exchange translation - net of tax 17 54,275,127

              

43,851,749

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years -

                           

-

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,269,925,961 1,556,927,208

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Director

___________

Chief Financial Officer

___________

Chief Executive Officer

___________



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2021
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Lahore Chief Financial Officer

___________

Chief Executive Officer

___________

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the year ended 30 June 2021 Note 2021 2020

( Rupees ) ( Rupees )
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 3,170,286,885 1,603,363,417

Adjustments for non cash and other items:

Depreciation 1,230,880,574 1,246,512,319

Amortization 5,358,947 5,389,128

Provision for GIDC 13,236,341

Impact of discounting and unwinding of interest on GIDC (156,356,101)

Finance cost 48,572,783 33,971,799

Expected credit loss on trade debtors (7,168,575) 113,746,383

Provision for obsolete stores, spares and other consumables 2,158,913 -

Provision against advances 8,440,778 34,350,342

Provision for obsolete stock in trade 3,033,115 8,842,128

Provision for workers' welfare fund - net 61,754,308 32,558,950

Provision for workers' profit participation fund 172,431,227 86,101,177

Share of profit of associate (146,579,432) (187,706,517)

Unrealized fair value loss on 

re-measurement of short term investments (892,740) 241,020

Dividend income (650,000) (500,000)

Unrealized exchange loss / (gain) 39,726,117 (8,171,541)

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (3,041,402) (2,362,747)

1,270,904,853 1,362,972,441

Operating profit before working capital changes 4,441,191,738 2,966,335,858

(Increase) / decrease in working capital:

Store, spares and other consumables 320,210 283,960,391

Contract assets - 40,457,514

Stock in trade 3,343,190,678 (2,336,890,353)

Trade debtors 956,738,375 (117,528,159)

Advances (364,765,667) 102,805,882

Other receivables 32,829,337 (12,419,370)

Contract liabilities 93,766,404 73,803,266

Trade and other payables 1,464,163,081 1,588,495,109

Cash flows from working capital changes - net 5,526,242,418 (377,315,720)

Cash generated from operations 9,967,434,156 2,589,020,138

Finance cost paid (36,009,682) (19,108,563)

Workers welfare fund paid (32,158,077) (46,694,351)

Workers profit participation fund paid (191,227,000) (140,820,376)

Income taxes paid - net (27,509,475) (360,300,593)

(286,904,234) (566,923,883)

Net cash generated from operating activities 9,680,529,922 2,022,096,255

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,834,262,809) (1,571,615,042)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 41,289,250 5,185,701

Dividend received from associate 90,757,747 136,111,818

Dividend received from short term investment 650,000 500,000

Long term advances and deposits (3,672,898) 4,980,455

Net cash used in investing activities (3,705,238,710) (1,424,837,068)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid during the year (6,210,604,564) (288,805,477)

Loan repaid to sponsor directors - net (26,000,000) (654,500,000)

Payment of lease liabilities (34,492,728) (19,025,868)

Subscription money received against right issue 2,978,484,660 -

Net cash used in financing activities (3,292,612,632) (962,331,345)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,682,678,580 (365,072,158)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 360,910,482 725,982,640

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25 3,043,589,062 360,910,482

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

       

Director

___________
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

BUSINESS UNIT LOCATION

Registered Office and

Head office 40 - L Mode Town Extension, Lahore

Marketing office 12 D/5 Chandani Chowk, KDA scheme No. 7-8, Karachi

Production Plants
Plant 1 22 Km Haripur Taxila Road, District Haripur
Plant 2 H-15 Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi
Plant 3 29 Km Lahore Sheikhupura Road, District Sheikhupura
Plant 4 50 Km Lahore Gujranwala Road, Tehsil Kamonke, District Gujrawala

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2

2.3

3 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

a Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

b Provision for obsolete stores, spares and other consumables and stock-in-trade

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS standards, the

provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipmentannually by considering

the expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to earn from the item and the maximum period

up to which such benefits are expected to be available. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the

carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the

depreciation charge and impairment.

Ghani Glass Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan in 1992 as a limited liability company under the

Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the company are listed on Pakistan Stock

Exchange. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of glass containers and float glass.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company’s business units, including production facilities are as 

under:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan.  The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventionexcept for the measurement of

short term investments which are carried at fair value. 

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee which is also the Company's functional currency. All the

financial information presented in Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

The preparationof financial statements in conformity with approvedaccounting standards requires the use of certain

critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic

experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the

following estimates and judgements which are significant to the financial statements.

The Company reviews the stores, spares and other consumables and stock in trade for possible obsolescence on

an annual basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 

stores, spares and consumables with a corresponding effect on the provision.
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c Net realizable value of stores, spares and other consumables and stock-in-trade

d Provision for expected credit loss (ECL)

e Provision for taxation

f Provisions

g Contingencies

h Lease term

The Company applies judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that

include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options

impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognized.

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.

Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the assessment

stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the

amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigationsand claims against the Company. Based on the judgment

and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financialoutcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made.

The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities

recognized at the reporting date.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on a regular basis. Carrying amount of stock-in-trade is

adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

Expected credit losses (ECLs) are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance

with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximationof the

original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or

other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in

credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are

possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over

the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.

Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provisionmatrix that is based on its historical

credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in

certain cases, the Company may also consider a financialasset to be in default when internal or external information

indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into

account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financialasset is written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4

4.1 New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the

previous financial year, except for amendments to following standards as described below:
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IFRS 3 – 

IFRS 16 – 
IFRS 16 – 

4.2

Effective date 
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)

01 January 2021

IFRS 3 01 January 2022

IFRS 16 01 January 2022

IAS 37 01 January 2022

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

01 January 2023

IFRS 10 Not yet finalized
& IAS 28

Presentation of Financial Statements & Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors: Definition of Material, to clarify the definition of material and its alignment with the definition

used in the Conceptual Framework (amendments)

Standards, Interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debt and other

liabilities as current or non-current.

IAS 1

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 - Amendment to IFRS 16

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect on the financial

statements.

The following amendments to the approved accounting and reporting standards, applicable in Pakistan, would be

effective from the dates mentionedbelow against the respective standards and interpretationhave not been adopted

early by the Company:

Standard or Interpretation

IAS 7 & 

IAS 9

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 – Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Business Combinations - Definition of a Business (amendments)
IFRS 7 & 

IFRS 9
– 

Standard or Interpretation

Financial instruments - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the interest

rate benchmark reform (IBOR)

Business Combinations - The amendment updates a reference in IFRS 3 to the

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting

requirements for business combinations.

IAS 8

Property, plant and equipment - Amendment to clarify the prohibitionon an entity

from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any

proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by

management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items,

and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets to specify which costs an

entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-

making.

Presentation of FinancialStatements to require that an entity discloses its material

accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting policies. Further

amendments explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy

AccountingPolicies, Changes in AccountingEstimates and Errors (Amendments) -

Definition of AccountingEstimates. Under the new definition,accounting estimates

are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement

uncertainty”

ConsolidatedFinancialStatements & Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures -

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture – (Amendment)

IAS 1 & 

IAS 8 – 

The above amendments to standards are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial

statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above new amendments to standards, the IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annualperiods

beginningon or after 01 January 2021 for preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based

on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts

override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to

assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no

applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

Effective date 
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)
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IASB effective date 

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

IFRS 1 - First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 01 July 2009
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Owned Assets

Depreciation methods, residual values and the useful life of the assets are reviewed at each financial year end and

adjusted if appropriate.

The Company expects that the adoptionof the above standards will not affect the Company's financial statements in

the period of initial application.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set-out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, except as explained in note 4.1. 

Cost comprises of purchase price including import duties and non-refundablepurchase taxes after deducting trade

discounts, rebates and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction including

expenditures on the material, labour and overheads directly relating to constructions, erection and installation of

property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,

only when it is probablethat future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost

of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or

loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment is charged to statement of profit or loss using reducing balance

method, except for furnace on which depreciation is charged on straight line basis, so as to write off the historical

cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the rates mentioned in note 15.1 after taking their residual value into

account.

Depreciationon additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset is acquired

or capitalized, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

Operating assets of property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss, if any

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standards

In addition to the above new amendments to standards, improvements to various accounting standards have also

been issued by the IASB in May 2020. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning

on or after 01 January 2022. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any

material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

An item of equipment is derecognizedupon disposal when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or

disposal. Gain or loss on sale of an item of property, plant and equipmentare determinedby comparing the proceeds

from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss, if any and represents expenditure

incurred on property, plant and equipmentduring the construction and installation.Cost also includes related / eligible

borrowing costs, if any. Transfers are made to relevant property, plant and equipment category when assets are

available for use.
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5.4 Stores, spares and other consumables

5.5 Stock in trade

Cost is determined as follows:

Raw and packing materials - At weighted average cost
Work-in-process -
Finished goods -

Stores, spares and other consumables are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is

determined using the weighted average method except items in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice

value plus other charges paid thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to

be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving items of

stores, spares and other consumables based on management estimates, if any. Items considered obsolete are

carried at nil value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to

be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving items of

stock in trade based on management estimates, if any.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock in trade  is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

At weighted average cost and related manufacturing expenses
At weighted average cost and related manufacturing expenses

5.2 Intangible assets

5.3 Investment in associate

Associates, which the Company intends to dispose of within twelve months of the reporting date are not accounted

for under the equity method and are shown under non-current assets held for sale at the lower of carrying and fair

value. Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained,only a proportionateshare of

the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Associates are the entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally represented

by a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using

the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost, and the

carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Company's share of the profit or loss of the associate

after the date of acquisition.

The Company's share of its associates' post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the statement of profit or

loss and its share in post-acquisition movements is recognized in other comprehensive income with a corresponding 

adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of loss in associates equals or

exceeds its interest in the associate including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize

further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Gain on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminatedto the extent of the Company's interest

in the associate.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its investments in associates to assess

whether there is any indicationthat such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indicationexists,

the recoverableamount is estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology, in order to determine the extent of

the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be

impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are

recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying amount exceeds the respective recoverable

amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in

statement of profile or loss. The recoverableamount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value

in use.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization for finite intangible assets and identified

impairment loss, if any. Finite intangibleassets are amortized using straight line method over their estimated useful

life at the rates mentioned in the note 16. Amortizationon additions to intangibleassets is charged from the month in

which an asset is available for use and on disposal up to the month of disposal. The estimated useful life and

amortization method is reviewed at the end of each financial year end, with effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Debt Instrument - FVOCI

Equity Instruments at FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest

method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and

losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition,gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or

loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to

present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-

investment basis.
These assets are subsequentlymeasured at fair value.Dividends are recognized as income in statement of profit or

loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and

losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss. However, the Company has no such

instrument at the reporting date.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

5.6 Financial instruments

5.6.1 Recognition and initial measurement

5.6.2 Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Amortized cost

A financialasset, except trade debt without a significant financingcomponent, or financial liabilityis initiallymeasured

at fair value plus transaction cost that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade debt without a

significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

All financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financialassets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognitionunless the Company changes its business

model for managing financialassets, in which case all affected financialassets are reclassified on the first day of the

first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designatedas

at FVTPL:

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequentlymeasured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost

is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are

recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, advances to

employees, trade debts and other receivables.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at

FVTPL. 
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5.6.3 Derecognition

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

5.6.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, loan from directors, unpaid dividend,unclaimed dividendand

lease liabilities.

When the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial

position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or

expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liabilitywhen its terms are modified and the cash flows of the

modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is

recognized at fair value.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financialasset

expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantiallyall of the

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor

retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financialassets and financial liabilitiesare offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financialposition

only when, the Company currently has a legallyenforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle

them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the

consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at

FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading,it is a derivativeor it is designated as such on initial recognition.Financial

liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are

recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets – Business model assessment:

-

-

-

-

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the

requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend

income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. The Company's short term investment in listed equities are

classified as fair value through profit or loss at the reporting date.

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is definedas the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.

‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal

amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk

and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a

contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this

condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
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5.7 Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are

measured at 12-month ECLs:

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after

the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- debt investments measured at FVOCI; and 
- contract assets.

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of defaultoccurring over the expected life

of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

 Non-financial assets

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognitionand

when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and

availablewithout undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitativeand qualitativeinformationand analysis, based

on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of

the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectationsof

recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individuallymakes an assessment

with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with

the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are

reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication

exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating

unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future

cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has

calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a matrix that is based on the Company's

historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial

recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is

relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and

analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking

information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is past due for more

than a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum

contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprises of cash in hand and cash at

banks.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its

estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in

respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata

basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the

loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates

used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s

carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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5.9 Share capital

5.10 Borrowings and their cost

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or productionof qualifyingassets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to

be available for their intended use are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Company's statement of profit or

loss in the period in which these are incurred.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are

recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

5.11 Taxation

Current

Deferred

5.12 Revenue recognition

5.12.1 Sale of goods

5.12.2 Interest income

5.12.3 Dividends

5.13 Foreign currency transaction

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized, when control of goods is transferred to the customers, at an

amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to-be entitled· in exchange for those goods

excluding sales taxes and trade discounts. Specific revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows: 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Company at

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetaryassets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currencies at

the reportingdate are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetaryassets

and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the functional currency at the

exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on

historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign

currency differences arising on retranslation are generally recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

Interest income is recognized as it accrues under the effective interest method using the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the

customer which, on the basis of current agreement with customers, is when the goods are dispatched to customers

in case of local sales and when goods are loaded on vessel in case of export sales.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset

is realized or liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss except in the case of items credited or

charged in other comprehensive income or  equity in which case it is included in equity.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liabilitymethod in respect of all temporary differences arising

from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable income. Deferred tax liabilities are generally

recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be availableagainst which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized.

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailinglaw

for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to

apply to profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge

for the current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous

years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect

of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current

or prior periods is recognized as an asset.



5.14 Employees benefits

5.14.1 Post employment benefits - Defined contribution plan

5.15 Provisions and contingencies

5.16 Earnings per share

5.17 Dividend to ordinary shareholders

5.18 Operating segments

5.19 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays

consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized

when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as

revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities arising out of customers'

right to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance obligations

and incentive on target achievements.

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from unappropriated profit in statement of changes in 

equity and as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which it is approved by Board of

Directors or the Company’s shareholders as the case may be.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identifiedas the Board of Directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid

contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is

available.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be

issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in

profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The Company operates funded contributoryprovident fund scheme for all its permanent and eligible employees. For

the purpose of scheme, a separate Trust has been established. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the

Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 percent of the gross salary.

Salaries, wages and benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees

of the Company and measured on an undiscounted basis.The accounting policy for employee retirement benefits is

described below:

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, a contingent liabilityis disclosed, unless

the possibility of outflow is remote.

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive

obligation as a result of past events and it is probablethat outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.
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5.20 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when:

- 

- 

5.21 Leases

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line

basis as an expense in statement of profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or

less without a purchase option.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily

determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts

expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the

lessee is reasonablycertain to exercise that option,payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination

options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise

these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is

remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an

index or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value

guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or

termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is

recorded in the statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease

payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs

to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less 

any lease incentive received. The right-of use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as

this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use

asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the Company; or

there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources

embodyingeconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligationor the amount of the obligationcannot

be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company is the lessee.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identifiedasset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. 

At initial recognition, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liabilityat the date at which

the leased asset is available for use by the Company. 
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6 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Note 2021 2020

2021 2020 ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

  725,371,695   427,523,229 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash         7,253,716,950         4,275,232,290 
    72,026,871     72,026,871 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares           720,268,710            720,268,710 

  839,391,132   541,542,666         8,393,911,320         5,415,426,660 

6.1 Movement during the year is as follows:

Balance as at 01 July 541,542,666 541,542,666
Issue of right shares 297,848,466 -
Balance as at 30 June 839,391,132 541,542,666

6.2

Note 2021 2020

7 RESERVES ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Capital

Share premium 7.1 75,000,000 75,000,000
Merger reserves 7.2 427,419,290 427,419,290

Reserve created under scheme of amalgamation 7.3 365,464,087 365,464,087

867,883,377 867,883,377
Revenue

Unappropriated profit 7,016,953,663 9,014,770,366

Exchange translation and other reserves 7.4 820,904,229 751,971,159

7,837,857,892 9,766,741,525

8,705,741,269 10,634,624,902

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8 DEFERRED TAXATION

Opening

Charge / 

(reversal) to 

profit or loss

Charged to other 

comprehensive 

income

Closing

Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 1,507,460,128

    

(208,550,312)

        

                             -         1,298,909,816 
Investment in associate 110,570,713

       

(10,674,940)

          

               9,577,964            109,473,737 
Right of use asset 21,426,920

         

(698,662)

               

                             -              20,728,258 
                             - 

Deductible temporary differences                              - 
-

                        

                             - 
Carry forward tax credits (100,304,662)

      

100,304,662

         

                             - -
Plant and machinery - acquired through business combination -

                      

(10,538,853)

          

                             -            (10,538,853)
Short term investment -

                      

(323,952)

               

                             -                 (323,952)
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable -

                      

(41,361,413)

          

                             -            (41,361,413)
Lease liabilities (27,669,402)

        

1,104,407

            

                             - (26,564,995)
Provisions (81,853,442)

        

(1,493,944)

            

                             -            (83,347,386)
1,429,630,255

    

(172,233,007)

        

9,577,964

              

1,266,975,212

                
                    
                                 

               
                                
                                          
                             

          

       
         
          

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81(2) and 81(3) of the Companies Act,

2017.

6.2

This includes the Company's share of legal reserve created by RAK GhaniGlass LLC (the associate). As per the UnitedArab

Emirates Federal Companies Law number 2 of 2015, the associate is required to establish a legal reserve by appropriationof

10% of its annual profit.

No. of shares

In accordance with the scheme of amalgamation, the Company has issued 3,984,064 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each to the

shareholders of formerly Ka'as ul Musaf'fa (Private) Limited, 32,258,071ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to the shareholders

of the formerly Ghani Float Glass Limited and 5,750,431 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to the shareholders of formerly

Techno Glass Industries Limited.

Ordinary shares of Rs.10

each issued under the scheme of 
amalgamation. 

2021

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

           419,925,660            419,925,660     41,992,566     41,992,566 

This represents reserve arising under the scheme of merger of formerly Ghani Float Glass Limited with the Company.

This represents reserve arising under the scheme of amalgamation of formerly Techno Glass industries Limited with the

Company.



Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 1,508,810,659 (1,350,531)                              -         1,507,460,128 
Investment in associate 92,128,444 10,703,725                7,738,544            110,570,713 
Right of use asset - 21,426,920                              -              21,426,920 

Deductible temporary differences

Carry forward tax credits (200,372,657) 100,067,995                            -            (100,304,662)
Lease liabilities - (27,669,402)                            -              (27,669,402)
Provisions and others (42,162,728) (39,690,714) -            (81,853,442)

1,358,403,718 63,487,993 7,738,544 1,429,630,255

Note 2021 2020

9 LONG TERM PAYABLE ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable 9.1 752,550,652 1,664,745,357

9.1 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable 9.1.1 1,521,625,597 1,664,745,357
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities 11 (769,074,945) -

752,550,652 1,664,745,357
9.1.1 Movement in Gas Infrastructure Development Cess payable

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,664,745,357 1,664,745,357
Provision during the year 13,236,341 -
Effect of discounting (249,027,397) -
Unwinding effect 92,671,296

            

-

9.1.2 1,521,625,597

       

1,664,745,357

9.1.2 This represents non-current portion of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines

Limited (SNGPL). During previous years, the Company, along with various other companies had challenged the legality and

validity of levy and demand of GIDC in HonorableLahore High Court. The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide judgement dated

13 August 2020, while dismissing appeals filed by various industrial and commercial entities with respect to the legality and

validity of levy and demand of GIDC, has decided the case in favor of SNGPL.Now the unpaid amount of GIDC is payablein

48 equal monthly installments starting from 01 August 2020. Accordingly, the related non-current portion has been

reclassified to non-current liabilities as at 30 June 2020.

The Company has challenged the decision before Lahore High Court on the grounds that a committee had to be constituted

to determine the issue regarding the arrears of GIDC prior to 2015. As SNGPL has served the bills for the arrears without

constitution of the said committee, these are considered to lack lawful authority. The Lahore High Court has granted stay

order against above decision on 22 September 2020.

Opening
Charge / Reversal 

to profit or loss

Charged to other 

comprehensive 

income

Closing       
                     

2020

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
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Note 2021 2020

10 LEASE LIABILITIES ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Lease liabilities            100,422,080            104,726,685 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities            (23,264,129)            (32,925,624)

             77,157,951              71,801,061 

Note 2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Year ended 30 June
Due not later than 1 year 33,732,753

            

45,008,474
Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 92,505,418

            

80,998,362
Later than 5 years -

                        

14,400,000
Lease payments 126,238,171

          

140,406,836

Less: Future finance charges (25,816,091)
           

(35,680,151)
100,422,080          104,726,685

Current portion (23,264,129)
           

(32,925,624)
77,157,951 71,801,061

The rates used as the discounting factor (i.e. Incremental borrowing rate) range from 10.17% to 14.85% (2020:

14.72% to 14.85%) per annum and lease period ranges from 1 to 5 years (2020: 1 to 6 years). The amount of future

payments and the periods during which they will become due are:
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            Lease payments (LP) and their present value (PV) are regrouped as below:

LP PV of LP LP PV of LP

Due not later than 1 year 33,732,753 23,264,128 45,008,474 32,925,624

Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 92,505,418 77,157,952 80,998,362 61,060,385

Later than 5 years -

                      

-

                        

14,400,000 10,740,676

126,238,171

       

100,422,080

         

140,406,836

          

104,726,685

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Note 2021 2020

( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

As at 01 July 2020 104,726,685

          

-

Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 -

                        

108,889,317

Additions 17,625,022

            

-

Accretion of finance charges 32 12,563,101

            

14,863,236

Payments (34,492,728)

           

(19,025,868)

As at 30 June 100,422,080

          

104,726,685

Note 2021 2020

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Trade creditors 2,456,744,871

       

1,050,559,484

Accrued liabilities 11.1 & 11.2 3,166,803,270

       

2,987,645,914

Security deposits 262,343,511

          

288,848,489

Workers' welfare fund 11.4 65,523,866

            

35,927,635

Workers' profit participation fund 11.5 72,319,851

            

91,115,624

Retention money 7,700,218

              

7,015,184

Employees vehicle deduction contribution 31,523,857

            

29,250,734

Income tax deducted at source 163,210,709 179,315,331

Payable to provident fund 20,858,256 20,460,900

Current portion of GIDC payable 9.1 769,074,945 -

7,016,103,354 4,690,139,295

11.1

11.2

Note 2021 2020

11.3 Security deposits ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Security deposits from transporters 11.3.1 4,567,321 3,472,299
Security deposits from customers 11.3.2 257,776,190 285,376,190

262,343,511 288,848,489

11.3.1

11.3.2

These are interest free security deposits obtained from transport contractors. These deposits are adjustable with the

outstandingbalance of the contractor and in case of terminationof contract a prior notice of six months is required to be filed

by the contractor. As per agreement with these parties, these deposits may be utilized by the Company in such manner and

for such purposes as it may determine in its sole and absolute discretion.

These represent amounts received from dealers and distributors and are repayable at the time of terminationof dealership /

distributorship or on cessation of business with the Company. As per agreement with these parties, these deposits may be

utilized by the Company in such manner and for such purposes as it may determine in its sole and absolute discretion.

This includes amount payable to Ghani Foundation,a related party, amounting to Rs. 75,078,132(2020 : Rs. 23,688,746)in

respect of charity. 

This includes provision against tarrif increased by SNGPL and SSGPL on various occassions amounting to Rs. 1,962.6

million (2020: Rs. Rs. 1,962.6 million). The Company has challenged the increase in rates before Lahore High Court and

Sindh High Court. Both Hounourable courts have granted stay order againstthe increase in rates. However, being prudent the

related provision has been incorporated in these financial statements.

20202021



58 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

            

          
       

Note 2021 2020
11.4 Workers' welfare fund ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Balance at the beginning of the year 35,927,635

            

50,063,036

Charge for the year 30 65,523,866

            

35,927,635

Prior year reversal (3,769,558)

             

(3,368,685)

61,754,308

            

32,558,950

Payments made during the year (32,158,077)

           

(46,694,351)

Balance at the end of the year 65,523,866

            

35,927,635

11.5 Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year              91,115,624 145,834,823

Payments made during the year          (191,227,000) (140,820,376)

Charge for the year 30            172,431,227 86,101,177

(18,795,773) (54,719,199)

Balance at the end of the year              72,319,851              91,115,624 

12 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Advance from customers 13.1 & 13.2            304,104,725            210,338,321 

12.1

12.2
2021 2020

( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Health Tek (Private) Limited 1,866,244 699,012
Sami Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited - 3,514,277

1,866,244 4,213,289
13 LOAN FROM SPONSOR DIRECTORS

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

This represents advance received from customers for future sale of goods. During the year, the Company has recognized

revenue amounting to Rs. 189.79 million, out of the contract liabilities as at 30 June 2020.

This includes advances received from the following related parties for future sale of goods:

This represented unsecured interest free loan received from the sponsor directors of the Company to meet the working

capital requirements of the Company. The loan has been paid during the year.

The Commissioner Inland Revenue issued order bearing No. C. No. 2933 dated 8 October 2018 under section 11(1) and

11(2) of the Sales Tax Act and rejected the input claim of Rs. 2.25 million. Penalty of Rs. 0.11 million is also imposed under

section 33(5) of Sales Tax Act. Being aggrieved by the said order, the Company filed an appeal before the CIR (Appeals), who 

vide Order dated 21 October 2019 confirmed the principle amount and default surcharge while deleted the penalty. Being

aggrieved by the said order, the Company filed an appeal with the ATIR, which is pending adjudication.

The tax year of the Company is same as its accounting year. The income tax assessments of the Company up to and

including tax year 2020 have been completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 except

for the following:

The management and the tax advisor of the Company are hopeful of the favorable outcome of the above mentioned cases,

accordingly no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued order no. 06/2013-14/9957 dated 07 March 2014 and created

sales tax demand amounting to Rs. 2,828,148 pertaining to sales tax periods of 2010, 2011 and 2012. This demand was

created on the account of inadmissible adjustments / refunds of sales tax. The Company filed an appeal before the CIR

(Appeals), who ordered against the Company. Being aggrieved with the said order, the Company filed an appeal with the

ATIR, which is pending adjudication.

The DCIR issued Order in Original No. 07/2013-14/10039dated 16 May 2014 under section 7 and 8 of the Sales Tax Act,

1990, read with S.R.O 450(1)/2013 dated 27 May2013 and rejected the input tax claim of Rs. 1.48 million for the tax periods

from July 2013 to October 2013 and December 2013. The Company filed an appeal before the CIR (Appeals), who ordered

against the Company. Being aggrieved by the said Order, the Company filed an appeal with the ATIR, which is pending

adjudication.

Commitments

14.5

14.6 Aggregateamount of bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company, outstandingas at reporting date amounts

to Rs. 2,774.49 million (2020: Rs. 2,682.57 million).

Letters of credit for import of materials and stores outstanding as at 30 June 2021 amounts to Rs. 3,352.86 million (2020:

Rs. 1,902.95 million).
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17 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

Note 2021 2020

Cost of investment ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

21,971 (2020: 21,971) fully paid ordinary 664,050,766 664,050,766

Company`s share of profit - post acquisition:
At the beginning of the year 737,138,084 644,818,508

Share of profit 146,579,432 187,706,517
Other comprehensive income 63,853,091 51,590,293
Share of total comprehensive income 210,432,523 239,296,810

Dividend for the year (217,745,696) (146,977,234)

Balance as at 30 June 1,393,875,677 1,401,188,850

17.1

2021 2020 2021 2020
AED AED Rupees

Non current assets 61,208,729 67,038,729 2,629,471,910 3,067,094,185
Current assets 67,033,806 61,720,052 2,879,711,975 2,823,758,974
Non current liabilities (16,445,048) (19,342,144) (706,464,462) (884,923,958)
Current liabilities (46,818,564) (41,189,674) (2,011,283,373) (1,884,472,028)

Net assets - 100 % 64,978,923 68,226,963 2,791,436,050 3,121,457,173

Percentage ownership interest 49.934% 49.934%

Company's share of net asset 1,393,875,677     1,558,668,424 
Other adjustments - (157,479,574)

Carrying value of net investment 1,393,875,677 1,401,188,850

Revenue 75,243,053      82,782,080 3,271,207,397 3,602,524,001
Profit for the year from operations 6,752,040        8,637,985 293,546,345 375,909,234
Company's share of profit 3,371,564 4,313,291 146,579,432 187,706,517

Note 2021 2020

18 LONG TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Security deposits 18.1 30,444,593

        

         23,667,541 
18.2 -

                     

3,104,154

         30,444,593 26,771,695

18.1 

2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Security deposits 41,348,229

        

         34,571,177 
Less: short term portion 22        (10,903,636)        (10,903,636)

         30,444,593          23,667,541 

18.2 

2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Advance to employees                        -            14,402,863 
Less: short term portion                        -          (11,298,709)

                       -              3,104,154 

       
      

RAK Ghani Glass LLC, ('RAK Ghani') is a limited liabilitycompany registered with the Ras Al Khaimah - Investment

Authority in United Arab Emirates. The principal activities of RAK Ghani are manufacturing and trading of

pharmaceutical glass bottles and other glassware products. As at 30 June 2021, the Company held 49.934%(2020:

49.934%) interest in the form of 21,971 (2020: 21,971) fully paid ordinaryshares of AED 1,000 each. As at 30 June

2021, the remaining shareholdingof 50.066%is held by JS InvestmentHoldingLimited which is situated in Caymans

Island.

( Rupees )

These are interest free deposits against utilities, regulatory authorities and leased properties.

The table below summarizes the financial information of RAK Ghani Glass LLC and reconciliation to the carrying

amount of the Company's interest in the associate:

Advances to employees

These advances are provided to employees for the purchase of vehicles against salaries under the terms of their
employment.



63GHANI GLASS LIMITED

Note 2021 2020

19 STORES, SPARES AND OTHER CONSUMABLES ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Stores and spares 594,026,285 693,859,619
Provision for obsolete stores, spares and other consumables 19.1 (23,644,364) (21,485,451)

570,381,921 672,374,168

Fuel and lubricants 200,680,914 101,167,790
771,062,835 773,541,958

19.1 Provision for obsolete stores, spares and other consumables

Balance at the beginning of the year 21,485,451 21,485,451
Charged during the year 27 2,158,913

          

-
Balance at the end of the year 23,644,364

        

21,485,451

20 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials 888,921,776

      

711,277,441
Work in process 119,325,914

      

92,285,137
Finished goods 20.1 1,667,228,355

   

5,158,257,028
Packing materials 78,117,625

        

134,964,742
2,753,593,670

   

6,096,784,348

Provision for obsolete stock in trade
- Raw materials (26,453,045)

       

(23,419,930)
- Packing material (6,816,898)

       

(6,816,898)
- Finished goods (34,435,272)

                    

(34,435,272)
20.2 (67,705,215)

       

(64,672,100)
2,685,888,455

   

6,032,112,248

20.1

Note 2021 2020

20.2 Provision for obsolete stock in trade ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Balance at the beginning of the year 64,672,100

        

55,829,972
Charged during the year 27 3,033,115

          

8,842,128
Balance at the end of the year 67,705,215

        

64,672,100

21 TRADE DEBTS

Local:
Secured 21.1 124,719,192 254,027,673
Unsecured-considered good 1,102,250,325 2,001,652,252

1,226,969,517 2,255,679,925
Foreign:

Unsecured-considered good 287,014,307

      

194,017,346
1,513,983,824

   

2,449,697,271

Less: Provision for expected credit loss 21.3 (179,213,599)

     

(186,382,172)
1,334,770,225

   

2,263,315,099

21.1

Note 2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Aging of Ghani Value Glass Limited

Current               746,044            8,989,607 
Past due 1-90 days                        -          173,922,903 

              746,044        182,912,510 

Aging of Sami Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited

Current            2,938,539                        -   
Past due 1-90 days                        -                          -   
Past due 91-180 days                        -                          -   
Past due 181-365 days                 62,915                        -   

           3,001,454                        -   

The amount charged to statement of profit or loss on account of write down of finished goods to net realizablevalue

amounts to Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 21 million).

This includes unsecured and interest free amount receivablefrom related parties GhaniValue Glass Limited & Sami

Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited of Rs. 0.75 million (2020: Rs. 182.91 million) and Rs. 3.00 million (2020: Rs. Nil)

respectively. The maximum amount due from Ghani Value Glass Limited and Sami Pharmaceuticals (Private)

Limited during the year, calculated by reference to month-end balances, was Rs.228.34 million (2020: Rs. 271.34

million) and Rs. 10.40 million (2020: Rs. Nil) respectively. The aging of trade receivables from Ghani Value Glass

Limited and Sami Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited is as follows:
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21.2 The details of defaulting parties out of total export debtors and the default amounts are as follows:

2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Murat Matein., Republic of Turkey 24,195,001

        

25,766,694
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka                        -              8,393,665 
T.L. Verma & Co (Pvt) Ltd., Republic of India            2,928,919            3,119,180 
Market India, Republic of India            3,833,480            4,082,500 
Burhani Glass Factory LLC, United Arab Emirates               344,479               366,856 
Lilypeck International, United Arab Emirates               174,612               185,955 
Shin Shin Glass Co Ltd., Republic of Korea               164,964               175,680 
Rajistan Glass House, Republic of India               152,245               162,135 
Enviro Safety Glass, Republic of India            1,046,519            1,114,500 
Global Glass , Republic of India                 74,753                 79,609 
Mohindra Enterprises, Republic of India                   2,367                   2,521 
Neelam Corporation, Republic of India                   9,241                   9,841 
Tisha Exports, Republic of India                 16,138                 17,187 
Yorglass Cam San. Ve Tic.A.S, Republic of Turkey               221,778                        -   
New Lucky Glass, Republic of Sri Lanka                 13,430                        -   
Mpp Trading Pvt Ltd, Republic of Sri Lanka                 10,359                        -   
Woodex Import, Puerto Rico               206,699                        -   

         33,394,984          43,476,323 

21.3

Note 2021 2020

Provision for expected credit loss ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Balance at the beginning of the year 186,382,172 72,635,789
(Reversal) / charged during the year (7,168,573) 113,746,383
Balance at the end of the year 179,213,599 186,382,172

22 ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS

Advances - Non-interest bearing

Employees - unsecured, considered good
- Advances against business expenses 27,835,220 62,398,203
- Advances to employees 15,491,630 11,298,709

43,326,850 73,696,912
Suppliers of goods - unsecured

- Considered good 22.1 758,754,760 372,059,809
- Considered doubtful 44,510,012 36,069,234

Provision for doubtful advances 22.2 (44,510,012) (36,069,234)
758,754,760 372,059,809

Security deposits

Short term portion of security deposits 18.1 10,903,636 10,903,636
812,985,246 456,660,357

22.1

2021 2020

Aging of Ahmad Brothers (Private) Limited ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Past due 1-90 days          65,111,877            2,721,600 
Past due 91-180 days          30,000,000            4,278,400 
Past due 181-365 days          10,000,000                        -   

       105,111,877            7,000,000 

22.2 Provision for doubtful advances 

Balance at the beginning of the year          36,069,234            1,718,892 

Reversal during the year             (652,979)          (1,718,892)
Charged during the year            9,093,757          36,069,234 

30            8,440,778          34,350,342 
Balance at the end of the year          44,510,012          36,069,234 

This includes unsecured and interest free advance, amounting to Rs. 105.11 million (2020: Rs. 7.00 million), given to 

Ahmad Brothers (Private) Limited, a related party, for purchase of silica sand. The maximum amount due from

Ahmad Brothers (Private) Limited during the year, calculated by reference to month-end balances, was Rs. 105.88

million (2020: Rs. 7.00 million ). The aging of trade receivables from Ahmad Brothers (Private) Limited is as follows:

The movement in provision for expected credit loss against trade debtors is as follows:
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23 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT Note 2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Investments at fair value through

profit or loss - listed securities (Shariah compliant) 23.1 4,718,580 3,825,840

23.1

Particulars 2021 2020 2021 2020

Balochistan Glass Limited [6,000 (2020: 6,000) shares] 72,934 72,934 95,280 38,940

Engro Fertilizers Limited [50,000 (2020: 50,000) shares] 3,234,296 3,234,296 3,513,500 3,014,000

K Electric Limited [50,000 (2020: 50,000) shares] 390,301 390,301 209,000 150,500

Dewan Cement Limited [80,000 (2020: 80,000) shares] 2,242,664 2,242,664 900,800 622,400

5,940,195 5,940,195 4,718,580 3,825,840

23.1.1

Note 2021 2020

23.1.2 Movement in fair value is as follows: ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Cost

As at 30 June 5,940,195 5,940,195

Unrealized fair value gain / (loss)

At the beginning of the year (2,114,355) (1,873,335)

Fair value gain / (loss) for the year 31 892,740 (241,020)

Balance at the end of the year (1,221,615) (2,114,355)

Fair value at 30 June 4,718,580

            

3,825,840

24 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax receivable - net 81,043,500

          

128,728,420

Due from related parties 24.1 281,062,541

        

157,380,751

Profit accrued on saving accounts - Islamic banks 13,129,462

          

-

Others 10,102,190

          

-

385,337,693

        

286,109,171
24.1 Due from related parties

RAK Ghani Glass Limited, associated company:

- Dividend receivable 24.1.1 279,035,093

        

146,977,234

- Receivable against expenses 24.1.2 1,661,706

            

10,403,517

24.1.3

281,062,541

        

157,380,751

24.1.1

24.1.2

24.1.3

24.1.4

Note 2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

RAK Ghani Glass Limited 281,062,541

        

157,380,751

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 40,962,332

          
30,165,780

Balances with banks
Local currency

Current accounts 967,896,238

        
263,269,302

Saving accounts 25.1 1,977,085,722

     

67,475,400

2,944,981,960

     

330,744,702

Foreign currency-current account (USD) 57,644,770 -
3,043,589,062 360,910,482

25.1

Carrying amount and fair value of short term investments as at year end is as follows:

Market ValueCost

Market value of the investments disclosed above is categorized as level 1 fair value measurement and is based on quoted share

prices available on the stock exchange as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

This represented receivableagainst expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of GhaniValue Glass Limited (Formerly Ghani

Automobile Industries Limited). This is interest free, unsecured and considered good and the amount is still outstanding.

Ghani Value Glass Limited (Formerly Ghani Automobile Industries Limited) 365,742

               

-

Ghani Value Glass Limited 

(Formerly Ghani Automobile 

Industries Limited)
365,742

              

-

This represents dividend receivable from RAK Ghani Glass LLC with respect to dividend declared during the current and prior

year. The balance receivable is outstandingin age bracket of 0-360 days and almost 62% of the outstandingamount is received

subsequent to the year end.

This represented receivableagainst expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of RAK GhaniGlass LLC. This is interest free,

unsecured and considered good and the amount is still outstanding.

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end balances is as

follows; 

The balances in saving accounts carry expected profit at the rate of 4.1% to 7.0% (2020: 5.2% to 11.2%) per annum.
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Note 2021 2020

26 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Revenue - local 23,325,940,186

   

18,741,435,314

Revenue - export 1,993,899,127

     

1,686,283,772

25,319,839,313

   

20,427,719,086

Less: 

Trade discounts (154,647,496) (377,283,982)

Sales tax (3,694,628,593) (2,954,191,021)

21,470,563,224

   

17,096,244,083

26.1 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Note 2021 2020

Type of products - net local sales ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Container glass products 7,464,792,529

     

6,607,571,882

Float glass products 12,015,916,429

   

8,802,313,403

19,480,708,959

   

15,409,885,285

Type of products -  net export sales

Container glass products 1,241,975,776

     

615,102,768

Float glass products 747,878,489

        

1,071,256,030

1,989,854,265

     

1,686,358,798

21,470,563,224

   

17,096,244,083

27 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 3,514,740,672

     

5,204,954,695

Packing material consumed 963,035,119

        

1,017,334,601

Fuel, gas and electricity 4,128,703,328

     

6,670,885,948

Stores and spares consumed 383,035,937

        

374,717,483

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 27.1 1,945,962,526

     

1,495,817,755

Depreciation 15.2 1,159,394,350 1,174,168,190

Amortization 16.1 4,939,115 4,957,998

Rent, rates and taxes 101,076,672 99,643,354

Repair and maintenance 92,237,229 88,103,445

Charity and donation 13,816,980 -

Legal and professional expenses 7,359,635 -

Travelling and motor running 27,006,295 47,770,083

Communication and stationery 9,353,892 10,239,361

Glass coating charges 113,829,305 8,643,068

Provision for obsolete stores, spares and other consumables 19.1 2,158,913 -

Provision for obsolete stock in trade 20.2 3,033,115 8,842,128

Other expenses 55,754,837 55,729,246

Cost of goods manufactured 12,525,437,920 16,261,807,355

Work in process:

  Opening balance 92,285,137 139,867,416

  Closing balance 20 (119,325,914) (92,285,137)

(27,040,777) 47,582,279

12,498,397,143 16,309,389,634

Finished goods:

Opening balance 5,158,257,028 2,859,650,798

Closing balance 20 (1,667,228,355) (5,158,257,028)

3,491,028,673 (2,298,606,230)

Freight and forwarding charges

- Local 253,288,465 171,360,714

- Export 376,271,866 308,424,434

16,618,986,147 14,490,568,552

27.1

In the following table revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primarily type of products.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits include Rs. 138.91 million (2020: Rs. 62.21 million) in respect of provident fund

contribution expense.
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Note 2021 2020

28 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 28.1 505,060,142 281,411,583

Rent, rates and taxes 8,408,651 3,507,419

Repair and maintenance 22,048,782 6,499,197

Travelling and conveyance 18,828,993 21,257,868

Communication, stationery and supplies 21,158,480 14,075,501

Utilities 15,573,932 7,947,209

Auditors' remuneration 28.2 2,845,000 2,845,000

Depreciation 15.2 71,011,245 63,994,524

Amortization 16.1 262,395 269,456

Legal and professional expenses 30,374,467 16,327,039

Charity and donation 28.3 422,938,332 233,929,699

Other expenses 23,781,964 22,984,011

1,142,292,383 675,048,506

28.1

Note 2021 2020

28.2 ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

              

            

28.3

Note 2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Ghani Foundation Trust 28.3.1 404,288,132

        

214,600,000
NUML University -

                      

1,268,973
404,288,132

        

215,868,973

28.3.1

Note 2021 2020
( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

29 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 29.1 382,630,148

        

208,439,920
Travelling and conveyance 15,194,226

          

24,681,723
Repair and maintenance 4,828,428

            

4,889,530
Rent, rates and taxes -

                          

2,414,329
Communication, stationery and supplies 2,715,444

            

2,044,901
Utilities 486,753

              

422,966
Sales promotions 47,184,023

          

89,795,030
Charity and donation 10,000

                

-
Legal and professional charges 233,965

              

-
Depreciation 15.2 474,979 8,349,605
Amortization 16.1 157,437 161,674
Other expenses 250,752

              

318,599
454,166,155

        

341,518,277

29.1

Salaries, allowances and other benefits include Rs. 28.53 million (2020: Rs. 15.42 million) in respect of provident fund

contribution expense.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits include Rs. 31.86 million (2020: Rs. 14.77 million) in respect of provident fund

contribution expense.

Ghani Foundation ( the "Trust") is a related party of the Company. The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Imtiaz Ahmed

Khan, Mr. Anwaar Ahmed Khan, Mr. Jubair Ghani and Mr. Junaid Ghani are the Trustees of the Ghani Foundation Trust. The

Trust is recognized from Income Tax Authorities under section 2(36) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The details of the donations to a single party exceeding10% of company's total amount of donation or Rs. 1 million, whichever is

higher, are as follows:

 

 

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Half yearly review fee

Code of corporate governance review fee

Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses

 

2,200,000

300,000

125,000

100,000

120,000

2,845,000

2,200,000

300,000

125,000

100,000

120,000

2,845,000
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Note 2021 2020

30 OTHER EXPENSES ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Workers' welfare fund 11.4 61,754,308

          

32,558,950
Workers' profit participation fund 11.5 172,431,227

        

86,101,177
Unrealized fair value loss on 

-re-measurement of short term investment 23.1.2 -

                      

241,020
Exchange loss 42,879,922

          

-
Provision against doubtful advances - net 22.2 8,440,778

            

34,350,342
Others -

                      

1,226,997
285,506,235

        

154,478,486

31 OTHER INCOME

Income / (loss) from financial assets

Profit on savings accounts- Islamic Banking 103,971,456 7,355,008

Exchange gain -

                      

18,982,684

Unrealized fair value gain on remeasurement short term investment 23.1.2 892,740

               

-

Dividend income 31.1 650,000

               

500,000

105,514,196

        

26,837,692

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of fixed assets 3,041,402

            

2,362,747
Scrap sales 67,636,342

          

60,092,643
Proceeds from sale of by-product - net of sales tax 8,675,100

            

12,769,260
Miscellaneous income 3,303,613

            

26,682,478
82,656,457

          

101,907,128
188,170,653

        

128,744,820

31.1

31.2

Note 2021 2020

32 FINANCE COSTS ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Bank charges 36,009,682

          

19,108,563
Interest on lease liabilities 12,563,101

          

14,863,236
Unwinding effect of GIDC 92,671,296

          

141,244,079 33,971,799

33 TAXATION

Income tax
 - Current year 126,869,058 -
 - Prior year - 26,799,965

126,869,058 26,799,965
Deferred tax
 - Current year (172,233,007) 63,487,993
 - Prior year - -

(172,233,007) 63,487,993
(45,363,949) 90,287,958

33.1 Tax charge reconciliation

Accounting profit       3,170,286,885       1,603,363,417 

Tax expense at the rate of 29% 919,383,197          464,975,391 

Tax effect of:

- Income under final tax regime 12,576,396              7,773,813 
- Impact of tax related to associate accounting 2,938,722            32,750,310 

- Tax credits (892,632,102)        (395,905,201)
- Prior year -            26,799,965 
- Impact of admissible and inadmissible expenses (87,630,162)          (46,106,320)
- Others                          -   

         (45,363,949)            90,287,958 
34 PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of providentfund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act 2017

and the rules formulated for this purpose.

This represents dividend received from the companies listed on the All Shares Islamic Index of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Sales tax on sale of by-product is Rs. 1.48 million (2020: Rs. 2.17 million).
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37.5 Fair value of financial instruments

FVTPL

Financial 

assets at 

amortized cost

Financial 

liabilities - at 

amortized cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

30 June 2021

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Short term investments - Listed securities 4,718,580

   

-

                    

-

                         

4,718,580

              

4,718,580 - -

Financial assets - not measured at fair value

Trade debts -

              

1,334,770,225

  

-

                         

1,334,770,225 - - -

Cash and bank balance -

              

3,043,589,062

  

-

                         

3,043,589,062 - - -

Advances and deposits -

              
858,921,469

     
-

                         
858,921,469 - - -

Other receivables -              304,294,193     -                         304,294,193 - - -

38.5.1 -

              
5,541,574,949

  
-

                         
5,541,574,949

       
- - -

Financial liabilities - measured at fair value -

              

-

                    

-

                         

-

                         

- - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair values

Trade and other payables -

              

-

                    

6,878,259,637

       

6,878,259,637 - - -

Unclaimed dividend -

              

-

                    

21,895,727

            

21,895,727 - - -

Lease liabilities -

                    

100,422,080

          

100,422,080 - - -

38.5.1 -

              

-

                    

7,000,577,444

       

7,000,577,444

       

- - -

Fair value 

through profit 

or loss

Financial assets 

at amortized 

cost

Financial liabilities - 

at amortized cost
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

30 June 2020

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Short term investments - Listed securities 3,825,840 - - 3,825,840 3,825,840 - -

Financial assets - not measured at fair value

Trade debts - 2,263,315,099 - 2,263,315,099 - - -

Cash and bank balance - 360,910,482 - 360,910,482 - - -

Advances and deposits - 48,974,040 - 48,974,040 - - -

Other receivables - 157,380,751 - 157,380,751 - - -

38.5.1 - 2,830,580,372 - 2,830,580,372 - - -

Financial liabilities - measured at fair value - - - - - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair values

Trade and other payables - - 4,354,529,972 4,354,529,972 - - -

Loan from sponsor directors - - 26,000,000 26,000,000 - - -

Unpaid dividend - - 1,014,638,626 1,014,638,626 - - -

Unclaimed dividend - - 19,052,071 19,052,071 - - -

Liability against right of use asset - - 104,726,685 104,726,685 - - -

38.5.1 - - 5,518,947,354 5,518,947,354 - - -

A financial instrument is regardedas quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readilyand regularlyavailablefrom an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,

or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement'requires the company to classify fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the

measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset either directly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2)
 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unadjusted) inputs (Level 3)

Carrying value Fair value

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Carrying value Fair value

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does

not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilitiesnot measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonableapproximationof fair

value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlyingthe definitionof fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations

or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.



76 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3
7

.5
.1

3
7

.5
.2

3
8

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

3
9

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 S
E

G
M

E
N

T
S

3
9

.1

3
9

.2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

%
%

P
a

k
is

ta
n

9
1

.4
0

9
0

.3
5

A
fg

h
a

n
is

ta
n

0
.4

2
0

.3
9

K
e

n
y
a

0
.0

3
0

.2
5

T
u

rk
e

y
0

.3
9

0
.7

9

P
h

ili
p

p
in

e
s

3
.2

7
1

.1
9

S
ri
 L

a
n

k
a

0
.3

9
0

.7
7

In
d

o
n

e
s
ia

0
.6

0
0

.8
7

S
o

u
th

 A
fr

ic
a

0
.5

1
0

.6
9

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
s
h

0
.5

7
0

.1
3

T
u

n
is

ia
-

0
.1

8

C
h

in
a

1
.1

4
3

.0
8

Q
a

ta
r

-
0

.5
0

U
g

a
n

d
a

-
0

.2
8

O
th

e
rs

1
.2

8
0

.5
3

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
's

 c
h

ie
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
's

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 s
in

g
le

 s
e

g
m

e
n

t 
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 

a
 s

in
g

le
 r

e
p

o
rt

a
b

le
 s

e
g

m
e

n
t.

S
a

le
s

fr
o

m
fl
o

a
t

g
la

s
s
,

fo
o

d
a

n
d

b
e

v
e

ra
g

e
s

p
ro

d
u

c
ts

a
n

d
p

h
a

rm
a

c
e

u
ti
c
a

lp
ro

d
u

c
ts

re
p

re
s
e

n
t
6

2
.6

2
%

,
1

2
.9

4
%

a
n

d
2

4
.4

3
%

(2
0

2
0

:
6

1
.4

5
%

,1
4

.1
7

%
a

n
d

2
4

.3
7

%
)

o
f

to
ta

l
re

v
e

n
u

e
o

f
th

e
C

o
m

p
a

n
y

re
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
.

T
h

e
 s

a
le

s
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 b

y
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
re

g
io

n
 i
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

T
h

e
B

o
a

rd
’s

p
o

lic
y

is
to

m
a

in
ta

in
a

n
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t
c
a

p
it
a

lb
a

s
e

s
o

a
s

to
m

a
in

ta
in

in
v
e

s
to

r,
c
re

d
it
o

r
a

n
d

m
a

rk
e

t
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

a
n

d
to

s
u

s
ta

in
th

e
fu

tu
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
to

f
it
s

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
.

T
h

e
B

o
a

rd
o

f
D

ir
e

c
to

rs

m
o

n
it
o

rs
th

e
re

tu
rn

o
n

c
a

p
it
a

le
m

p
lo

y
e

d
,w

h
ic

h
th

e
C

o
m

p
a

n
y

d
e

fi
n

e
s

a
s

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
in

c
o

m
e

d
iv

id
e

d
b

y
to

ta
lc

a
p

it
a

le
m

p
lo

y
e

d
.T

h
e

B
o

a
rd

o
f

D
ir
e

c
to

rs
a

ls
o

m
o

n
it
o

rs
th

e
le

v
e

lo
f

d
iv

id
e

n
d

s
to

o
rd

in
a

ry

s
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
's

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 w

h
e

n
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

re
: 

i)
  

  
to

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
ty

's
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 a
s
 a

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
, 

s
o

 t
h

a
t 

it
 c

a
n

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 f

o
r 

s
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

a
n

d

ii)
  

  
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 s
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

T
h

e
C

o
m

p
a

n
y

m
a

n
a

g
e

s
th

e
c
a

p
it
a

l
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
in

th
e

c
o

n
te

x
t

o
f

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
ri
s
k

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s

o
f

th
e

u
n

d
e

rl
y
in

g
a

s
s
e

ts
.

In
o

rd
e

r
to

m
a

in
ta

in
o

r
a

d
ju

s
t

th
e

c
a

p
it
a

l
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
,

th
e

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 m

a
y,

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

a
d

ju
s
t 

th
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

d
iv

id
e

n
d

s
 p

a
id

 t
o

 s
h

a
re

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

is
s
u

e
 n

e
w

 s
h

a
re

s
, 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

 n
e

w
 l
in

e
s
 o

f 
c
re

d
it
 o

r 
s
e

ll 
a

s
s
e

ts
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 d
e

b
t.

N
e

it
h

e
r 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
’s

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

n
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 i
m

p
o

s
e

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.

P
la

n
t
a

n
d

m
a

c
h

in
e

ry
w

h
ic

h
w

a
s

a
c
q

u
ir
e

d
u

n
d

e
r

s
c
h

e
m

e
o

f
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t
fo

r
a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
o

f
T
e

c
h

n
o

G
la

s
s

In
d

u
s
tr

ie
s

L
im

it
e

d
,
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

re
v
a

lu
e

d
b

y
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

lv
a

lu
e

rs
(l
e

v
e

l
3

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t)

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
s.

 T
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 is

 c
o

n
d

u
ct

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 v
a

lu
a

tio
n

 e
xp

e
rt

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y.

 T
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 e

xp
e

rt
s 

u
se

d
 a

 d
e

p
re

ci
a

te
d

 r
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
co

st
 m

e
th

o
d

 t
o

 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

th
e

v
a

lu
e

o
f

p
la

n
t

a
n

d
m

a
c
h

in
e

ry
.

T
h

e
e

ff
e

c
t

o
f

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
in

th
e

u
n

o
b

s
e

rv
a

b
le

in
p

u
ts

u
s
e

d
in

th
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
c
a

n
n

o
t

b
e

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
w

it
h

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

,
a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

a
q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
o

f

s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 f
o

r 
s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

th
e

ir
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
.



2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
,5

7
4

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

,5
7

7
 

2
,5

7
6

2
,9

6
1

N
o

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

4
0

R
E

C
O

N
C

IL
IA

T
IO

N
 O

F
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 T
O

 C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 A

R
IS

IN
G

 F
R

O
M

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

E
q

u
it

y

U
n

p
a

id
 d

iv
id

e
n

d
L

o
a

n
 f

ro
m

 

s
p

o
n

s
o

r 
d

ir
e

c
to

rs

U
n

c
la

im
e

d
 

d
iv

id
e

n
d

L
e

a
s

e
 L

ia
b

il
it

ie
s

 S
h

a
re

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

T
o

ta
l

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s

 a
t 

0
1

 J
u

ly
 2

0
2

0
1

,0
1

4
,6

3
8

,6
2

6

  
  
   

2
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
9

,0
5

2
,0

7
1   

  
  
  
  
  

1
0

4
,7

2
6

,6
8

5

  
  
  
  
  

5
,4

1
5

,4
2

6
,6

6
0

6
,5

7
9

,8
4

4
,0

4
2

C
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
s

F
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o

s
t 

p
a

id
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-

L
e

a
s
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

(3
4

,4
9

2
,7

2
8

)

  
  
  
  
   

(3
4

,4
9

2
,7

2
8

)

D
iv

id
e

n
d

 p
a

id
(6

,2
1

0
,6

0
4

,5
6

4
)

  
  
  

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
,2

1
0

,6
0

4
,5

6
4

)

Is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
h

a
re

s
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,9

7
8

,4
8

4
,6

6
0

2
,9

7
8

,4
8

4
,6

6
0

P
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-

L
o

a
n

 p
a

id
 t

o
 s

p
o

n
s
o

r 
d

ir
e

c
to

rs
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

(2
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

)

  
  
  
  
   

-
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

)

T
o

ta
l 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f

ro
m

 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 c

a
s

h
 f

lo
w

s
  

  
  

(6
,2

1
0

,6
0

4
,5

6
4

)
  

  
  

  
  

 (
2

6
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
)  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

 (
3

4
,4

9
2

,7
2

8
)

  
  

  
 2

,9
7

8
,4

8
4

,6
6

0
 

  
  

  
(3

,2
9

2
,6

1
2

,6
3

2
)

O
th

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 n
o

n
-c

a
s

h

D
iv

id
e

n
d

 d
e

c
la

re
d

5
,1

9
5

,9
6

5
,9

3
8

  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2
,8

4
3

,6
5

6   
  
  
  
  
  
  -

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
5

,1
9

8
,8

0
9

,5
9

4

A
d

d
it
io

n
 i
n

 l
e

a
s
e

s
1

7
,6

2
5

,0
2

2
1

7
,6

2
5

,0
2

2

In
te

re
s
t 

e
x
p

e
n

s
e

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

1
2

,5
6

3
,1

0
1

-
1

2
,5

6
3

,1
0

1

T
o

ta
l 

li
a

b
il

it
y

 r
e

la
te

d
 o

th
e

r 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s

  
  

  
  

5
,1

9
5

,9
6

5
,9

3
8

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

  
  

 2
,8

4
3

,6
5

6
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
0

,1
8

8
,1

2
3

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

  
  

  
 5

,2
2

8
,9

9
7

,7
1

7
 

C
lo

s
in

g
 a

s
 a

t 
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
2

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
- 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

1
,8

9
5

,7
2

7
 

  
  

  
  

  
1

0
0

,4
2

2
,0

8
0

 
  

  
  

 8
,3

9
3

,9
1
1

,3
2

0
 

  
  

  
 8

,5
1

6
,2

2
9

,1
2

7
 

E
q

u
it
y

U
n

p
a

id
 d

iv
id

e
n

d
L

o
a

n
 f

ro
m

 s
p

o
n

s
o

r 

d
ir
e

c
to

rs

U
n

c
la

im
e

d
 

d
iv

id
e

n
d

s
L

e
a

s
e

 L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 S

h
a

re
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
T
o

ta
l

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s
 a

t 
0

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
9

  
  

  
  

  
 2

2
0

,3
5

8
,7

7
1

 
6

8
0

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

1
9

,0
5

2
,0

7
1

-
5

,4
1

5
,4

2
6

,6
6

0
  

  
  

 6
,3

3
5

,3
3

7
,5

0
2

 
C

a
s
h

 f
lo

w
s

F
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o

s
t 

p
a

id
-

-
-

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

L
e

a
s
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
-

-
-

(1
9

,0
2

5
,8

6
8

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
 (

1
9

,0
2

5
,8

6
8

)

D
iv

id
e

n
d

 p
a

id
(2

8
8

,8
0

5
,4

7
7

)
-

-
-

-
  

  
  

  
 (

2
8

8
,8

0
5

,4
7

7
)

Is
s
u

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
h

a
re

s
-

-
-

-
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

P
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

-
-

-
-

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 

L
o

a
n

 p
a

id
 t

o
 s

p
o

n
s
o

r 
d

ir
e

c
to

rs
-

(6
5

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
)

-
-

-
  

  
  

  
 (

6
5

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
)

T
o

ta
l 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f

ro
m

 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 c

a
s

h
 f

lo
w

s
(2

8
8

,8
0

5
,4

7
7

)
(6

5
4

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

)
-

(1
9

,0
2

5
,8

6
8

)
-

(9
6

2
,3

3
1

,3
4

5
)

O
th

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

o
n

-c
a

s
h

D
iv

id
e

n
d

 d
e

c
la

re
d

1
,0

8
3

,0
8

5
,3

3
2

-
-

-
-

1
,0

8
3

,0
8

5
,3

3
2

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

IF
R

S
 1

6
1

0
8

,8
8

9
,3

1
7

-
1

0
8

,8
8

9
,3

1
7

In
te

re
s
t 

e
x
p

e
n

s
e

-
-

-
1

4
,8

6
3

,2
3

6
-

1
4

,8
6

3
,2

3
6

T
o

ta
l 
lia

b
ili

ty
 r

e
la

te
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
  

  
  

  
1

,0
8

3
,0

8
5

,3
3

2
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

- 
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

2
3

,7
5

2
,5

5
3

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

  
  

  
 1

,2
0

6
,8

3
7

,8
8

5
 

C
lo

s
in

g
 a

s
 a

t 
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
2

0
1

,0
1

4
,6

3
8

,6
2

6
2

6
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

9
,0

5
2

,0
7

1
1

0
4

,7
2

6
,6

8
5

5
,4

1
5

,4
2

6
,6

6
0

6
,5

7
9

,8
4

4
,0

4
2

L
ia

b
il

it
ie

s

3
0

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
1

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

  
R

u
p

e
e
s

 -
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--

3
0

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
0

L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s

-
-

-
-

4
1

N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

S

- 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

 J
u

n
e

- 
A

ve
ra

g
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r

T
h

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

o
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
u

a
l e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

a
s 

a
t 

3
0

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
1

 a
n

d
 a

s 
a

t 
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
2

0
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:

77GHANI GLASS LIMITED



78 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Lahore Chief Financial Officer

___________

Chief Executive Officer

___________

42 PLANT CAPACITY AND ANNUAL PRODUCTION

The production capacity and the actual production achieved during the year are as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020

Glass products 362,551 500,050 285,806 373,656

42.1 Reason for low production

43 CREDIT FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AT YEAR END ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Available limit Utilized credit Available limit Utilized credit

Running Musharakah 3,600

                 

-

                     

1,200

                

-
Istisna 1,100

                 

-

                     

900

                   

-
Salam 100

                    

-

                     

100

                   

-
4,800

                 

-

                     

2,200

                

-

Letter of credits / guarantees 7,334

                 

6,127

                 

5,950

                

4,795

Note 2021 2020
44 Earnings per share - basic and diluted ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )

Profit attributable to owners of the Company Rupees 3,215,650,834    1,513,075,459

Weighted-average number of ordinary

Restated

shares at 30 June Number of shares 773,560,315

      

747,328,879

Restated

Earning per share Rupees 4.16 2.02

44.1

45 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

2020

46 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

47 Date of authorization for issue

Production capacity (Tons)

Under utilization of available capacity is mainly due to normal maintenance and production losses.

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share.

20202021

 - - - - - - Rupees in million - - - - - - 

Mortgage and charges on above facilities are amounting to Rs.9,439 million  (2020 : 8,969 million)

The above mentioned limits are main limits, however sublimit of other Islamic financing facilities are also available under these

main limits.

- - - - - Rupees in million - - - - - 

Actual production (Tons)

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on October 01, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison and better

presentation. However, no significant reclassifications have been made during the year except as given below:

Description ToFrom

The above reclassification does not have any material effect on information presented in the statement of financial positions and

cash flow. Therefore, third balance sheet has not been presented.

Trade And Other Payables

Trade And Other 

Payables

The board of directors of the Company in its meeting held on 01 October 2021 proposed cash dividend of Rs.1 (2020: Rs. Nil) per

ordinaryshare of Rs. 10 each which is subject to approval by shareholdersat the forthcoming AnnualGeneral Meetingand has not

recognised in these financial statements.

Provision against 

increase in gas tariff 

Long Term Payable     1,664,745,357 

Gas Infrastructure 

Development Cess 

Long Term Payable        971,101,458 

Director

___________
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of Shares Held by the Shareholders of Ghani Glass Limited as at June 30, 2021
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

     Shareholding

No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
431

728

714

1,494

437

190

96

64

44

33

19

17

15

10

12

9

4

5

8

5

5

3

11

5

2

2

3

4

2

3

4

3

3

1

1

3

2

1

1

1

3

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

1

2

1

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
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640,001
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840,001
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1,050,001

1,140,001
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1,250,001

1,495,001

1,625,001

1,730,001
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2,285,001
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195,000

200,000

205,000

210,000
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225,000

230,000

235,000

250,000

260,000

270,000

300,000

310,000

350,000

355,000

390,000

400,000

405,000

430,000

530,000

645,000

705,000

720,000

845,000

1,010,000

1,055,000

1,145,000

1,235,000

1,255,000

1,500,000

1,630,000

1,735,000

1,850,000

2,015,000

2,290,000

2,935,000

2,970,000

5,345,000

5,540,000

5,755,000

6,015,000

6,520,000

7,270,000

7,365,000

7,840,000

8,320,000

8,840,000

9,475,000

9,865,000

9,950,000

10,240,000

11,155,000

12,110,000

12,125,000

12,440,000

12,530,000

13,210,000

14,005,000

15,065,000

15,220,000

15,420,000

16,570,000

16,660,000

16,790,000

18,165,000

18,415,000

19,535,000

21,200,000

21,300,000

22,260,000

22,550,000

22,950,000

27,560,000

28,020,000

28,185,000

30,795,000

38,570,000

41,130,000

52,630,000

57,440,000

11,941

306,351

663,105

3,985,781

3,399,539

2,369,159

1,725,882

1,459,338

1,240,079

1,073,925

721,528

720,292

734,251

532,282

705,325

564,808

266,839

360,126

623,639

413,587

438,425

277,618

1,085,860

506,334

214,137

223,715

352,221

493,517

255,430

394,235

557,000

427,812

444,974

153,118

163,215

502,901

365,781

187,000

191,425

200,000

604,978

205,500

430,000

221,650

227,493

230,846

250,000

258,500

537,694

600,000

310,000

696,979

352,329

386,000

400,000

806,000

856,442

525,915

640,813

702,625

719,204

843,500

3,022,500

1,053,220

1,140,150

1,230,058

1,253,200

1,500,000

1,627,665

1,734,130

1,848,819

2,015,000

2,287,053

2,931,164

2,965,732

5,341,893

5,536,170

5,754,105

6,014,221

6,519,673

7,266,999

7,361,961

7,838,471

8,315,382

8,838,100

9,471,746

9,863,500

9,945,705

10,236,213

11,151,105

12,108,486

12,123,286

24,875,294

12,525,137

13,206,775

14,002,958

15,062,930

15,217,200

15,419,728

16,565,659

16,658,697

16,787,411

18,161,236

18,414,303

19,531,560

21,196,239

21,297,645

22,255,026

22,547,863

22,949,108

27,556,109

28,015,011

28,181,191

30,790,974

38,568,836

41,125,425

52,625,296

57,438,851

4,484 839,391,132



442,552,159
           

5,342,470
        

1,500,333        

           2,208,783

        
-

                 
305,164,558

     

             

22,484,474

1,194,247

58,118,906

 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage

 Directors, Chief Executive Officers,

      and their spouse and minor children

 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties.

 NIT and ICP

 Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non

Banking Financial Institutions.

 Insurance Companies

 Modarabas and Mutual Funds

 Share holders holding 10% or more

 General Public

               a. Local

               b. Foreign

 Others (to be specified)

Joint Stock Companies

Pension Funds

Other Companies
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52.7230%

0.0708%

0.6365%

0.1787%

0.0157%

0.2631%

0.0000%

36.3555%

0.0117%

2.6787%

0.1423%

6.9239%

594,580

132,000

98,622
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No. of Shares Held PercentageSr. No. Name

Executives: - -

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -

As on June 30, 20٢1

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

1 JAMIA-TUL-GHANI

2

3 GHANI MINES (PVT) LIMITED - (CDC)

GHANI GLASS LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND

127,968

385,831

80,781

0.0152%

0.0460%

0.0096%

1

2

3

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND (CDC)

CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND (CDC)

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND (CDC)

CDC - TRRSTEE  MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (CDC)4

59,293 0.0071%

702,625 0.0837%

1,253,200 0.1493%

97,650 0.0116%

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

2,922,595 0.3482%

1

2

3

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

MR. AFTAB AHMAD KHAN

EMPLOYEES OLD AGE BENEFITS INSTITUTION (CDC)

MR. IMTIAZ AHMAD KHAN

67,842,496 8.0823%

57,438,851 6.8429%

43,412,478 5.1719%

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

19

20

21

22

MR. IMTIAZ AHMAD KHAN

MR. JUNAID GHANI

MR. ANWAAR AHMAD KHAN

MR. AFTAB AHMAD KHAN

MR. ZAID GHANI 

MR JUBAIR GHANI

MR. SHAMIM AHMED (CDC)

MR. HAMZA GHANI

MR. AYUB SADIQ

MR. AJMAL KHAN (EOBI Nominee)

MR. MOEEZ GHANI (CDC)

MR. IBRAHIM GHANI

MR. WAQAR ZAFAR (CDC)

MR. OVAIS SHAMIM (CDC)

HAFIZ MUHAMMAD SAAD

MR. NOMAN SHOUKAT

MR. KHALID ASLAM BUTT

MRS. ROBINA IMTIAZ W/O IMTIAZ AHMAD KHAN

MRS. REEMA ANWAAR W/O ANWAAR AHMAD KHAN

MRS. AYESHA AFTAB W/O AFTAB AHMAD KHAN

MRS. MUSFIRA JUBAIR W/O JUBAIR GHANI

MRS. AMNA OVAIS W/O OVAIS SHAMIM (CDC)

MRS. ANAM ZAID W/O ZAID GHANI (CDC)

43,412,478

33,406,131

41,500,000

67,842,496

33,406,131

35,073,000

5,536,170

30,030,011

3,253

-

35,073,000

30,030,010

775

19,531,560

1,133

1,133

1,133

15,062,930

11,970,343

30,790,974

4,752

9,471,746

403,000

5.1719%

3.9798%

4.9441%

8.0823%

3.9798%

4.1784%

0.6595%

3.5776%

0.0004%

0.0000%

4.1784%

3.5776%

0.0001%

2.3269%

0.0001%

0.0001%

0.0001%

1.7945%

1.4261%

3.6683%

0.0006%

1.1284%

0.0480%23

PURCHASE

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mr. Jubair Ghani

Mr. Zaid  Ghani 5,000

Mrs. Sana Ayub w/o Ayub Sadiq 

SALE 

1,400,000

3,700,000

2,300,000

3,705,000

77,480

1

2

3

4

5

S. No. NAME

Trading in the shares of the company, carried out by its Directors, Executives 

and their spouses and minor children:



82 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notice is hereby given that 29th Annual General Meeting of the members of GHANI GLASS LIMITED will be held on Thursday 
October 28, 2021 at 11:30 a.m., at Nine Tree Luxury Hotel & Suites, 32-C, Gulberg-III, Lahore to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.     To confirm the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 14, 2020.

2.      To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual accounts of GHANI GLASS LIMITED for the year ended June 30, 
2021 together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon.

3. To approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, payment of Final Cash Dividend @ 10% i.e. Re.1 per share. 
This is in addition to aggregated Interim Cash Dividend of 85% (1st interim cash dividend of 65% i.e. Rs. 6.5 per 
share, and second interim cash dividend of 20% i.e. Rs. 2 per share) already paid for the year ended June 30, 2021..

4.  To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2022 and fix their remuneration.

The retiring auditors namely M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered 
themselves for re-appointment.

Special Business

Alteration of Memorandum of Association

5. To consider and if deemed fit, pass the following special resolutions, with or without modification, as proposed by the 
directors, to amend sub clause 8 of clause III of Memorandum of Association of the company:

“RESOLVED that the approval be and is hereby granted to alter the sub clause 8 of clause III of Memorandum of 
Association of Ghani Glass Limited with the new clause as given below:

8. To invest the surplus funds of the Company, from time to time in any venture which the  board deem 
suitable for the company including purchase, improvement, development, construction & 
management of all kinds of immovable property; acquiring shares, securities, stocks, debentures, 
bonds, units or Government securities or other securities, stocks and to exercise and enforce all rights 
and powers conferred by or incidental to such investments and execute all such assignments, 
endorsements, transfers, receipts and documents that may be necessary in that behalf. 

“FURTHER RESOLVED That the Chief Executive Officer and/or Company Secretary be and are
  hereby singly authorized to take all necessary actions on behalf of the Company to complete necessary 
corporate or legal formalities where required for the purpose of implementation of the aforesaid resolutions.
     

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

A Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 is being attached with the notice.

By order of the Board
Lahore: October 6, 2021                                                                                                       

Hafiz Muhammad Imran Sabir
      Company Secretary

Notes:

· The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2021 to October 28, 2021 (both days 
inclusive). Members whose names appear on the register of members as at the close of business on October 20, 2021 will 
be entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting and cash dividend entitlement.

· A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/her behalf. A corporation being a member may appoint as its proxy any of its official or any other 
person whether a member of the Company or not. Proxies in order to be effective must be deposited at the Share 
Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting, and must be duly stamped, 
signed and witnessed.

· Members are requested to promptly notify Company's Shares Registrar M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd., Wings Arcade, 1-K 
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, Ph: 042-35916714, 35916719 Fax: 042-35869037 of any change in their addresses to 
ensure delivery of mail.

· CDC Accountholders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down by Circular No. 1, dated January 26, 2000, 
issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”).

Withholding tax on dividend income

It is further informed that pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act 2014, effective from July 1, 2014 a new criteria for withholding of 
tax on dividend income was introduced by the FBR. The 'Filer' and 'Non-Filer' shareholder shall pay tax on dividend @ 15% and 
30% respectively.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Mandatory Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode

The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any dividend payable in cash shall only 
be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the 
shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the following information to the Company's Share Registrar at the 
address given herein above. In case of shares held in CDC, the same information should be provided directly to the CDS 
participants for updating and forwarding to the Company.

Folio No/Investor Account /CDC sub Account No:
Title of Account:
CNIC No:
IBAN No:
Bank Name:
Branch address:
Cell No:
Name of Network (if protected):
Email Address:
___________________
Signature of Shareholder

Video Conference Facility

In terms of the Companies Act, 2017, members residing in a city holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand 
the facility of video-link for participating in the annual general meeting. The request for video-link facility shall be received by the 
Share Registrar at the address given hereinabove at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form placed in the 
annual report which is also available on the website of the Company.

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through e-mail

In pursuance of the directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 787(I)/2014 dated 
September 8, 2014, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in future through e-mail instead of 
receiving the same by Post are advised to give their formal consent along with their e-mail address duly signed by the shareholder 
along with copy of his CNIC to our share registrar's office, M/s. Corplink (Pvt) Ltd, Wings arcade, 1-k, commercial, Model Town, 
Lahore. Please note that giving e-mail address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of the same by Post is optional, 
in case you do not wish to avail this facility, please ignore this notice, Financial Statement will be sent to you at your registered 
address.

Exemption from deduction of Income Tax/Zakat

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a 
valid tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat 
are also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Company's Website

The audited financial statement of the company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been placed at the Company's website 
www.ghaniglass.com.

Statement of Material Facts under the Provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017

Item No.5

Alteration in Memorandum of Association

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on October 1, 2021 has approved to amend the sub clause 8 of Clause III of the 
Memorandum of Association of Ghani Glass Limited in order to avail the best opportunities and utilize the surplus funds of the 
company in profitable ventures.

Comparison of Memorandum of Association of the Company with regard to proposed alteration

Interest of Directors
The directors are not interested, directly or indirectly, in the above business except to the extent of their shareholding as has been 
detailed in the pattern of Shareholding. 

MOA Clause reference Existing Clauses Proposed new Clauses
III (8) To deal moneys of the Company not immediately 

required upon such securities and in such manner 
as may from time to time be determined.

To invest the surplus funds of the Company, from time to time in 
any venture which the board deem suitable for the company 
including purchase, improvement, development, construction & 
management of all kinds of immovable property; acquiring shares, 
securities, stocks, debentures, bonds, units or Government 
securities or other securities, stocks and to exercise and enforce 
all rights and powers conferred by or incidental to such 
investments and execute all such assignments, endorsements, 
transfers, receipts and documents that may be necessary in that 
behalf.
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2020 2021

17,096

2,606

1,450

1,603

1,513

2.02

21,471

4,852

3,165

3,170

3,216

4.16
Restated
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40-L, Model Town Extension, Lahore

Form of Proxy

Folio No.

No. of Shares

I/WE

of

Being a member of GHANI GLASS LIMITED

Hereby appoint Mr.

of

failing him Mr. 

(Being a member of the company) as my/our proxy to attendant and vote for me/us on my behalf at 29th Annual 

General Meeting of the members of GHANI GLASS LIMITED to be held on Thursday October 28, 2021 at 11:30 

a.m., at Nine Tree Luxury Hotel & Suites, 32-C, Gulberg-III, Lahore and at any adjournment Therof.

As witness my/our hand(s) this day of 2021

Witness's Signature

Signature

Name:

Address:

of

NOTES:
Proxies, in order to be effective, by the company not later than 48 hours before the meeting and must be duly
stamped, signed and witnessed.

Signature and        
Revenue Stamp

GHANI GLASS LIMITED

Request for Video Conferencing Facility Form

I/We, ______________________________ of ___________________________ being a member of

Ghani Glass Limited, holder of _________________________________________________________

Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No/CDC A/c No.____________________________________

hereby opt for video conference facility at ________________________________________________.

_________________________________ Date: ______________________





Head Office:
40-L, Model Town Extension, Lahore, Pakistan. 

UAN: +92-42-111 949 949
Fax: + 92-42-35172263
www.ghaniglass.com
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